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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the directors of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited 
- Pakistan Branches 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed f inancial statements of Industrial and Commercial 
Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches (the Branches). wh ich comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the profit and loss 
account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity 
and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, the statement 
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the 
Banking Companies Ordinance. 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in 
the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Branches' affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the profit and other comprehensive 
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) 
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of pur report. We are independent of the Branches in accordance w ith the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the 
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other informat ion 
comprises the information included in the risk management framework and statement 
of internal control, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon. 
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard . 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial 
Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and 
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Branches' ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Branches or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Branches' financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
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a bas is for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Branches' internal 
control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, w hether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Branches' ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Branches to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overal l presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and w hether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate w ith the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit. we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Branches as required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and the returns referred above from the 
branches have been found adequate for the purpose of our audit; 

b) the statement of financial position, the prof it and loss account. the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement 
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) 
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year 
were in accordance w ith the objects and powers of the Branches and the 
transactions of the Branches' which have come to our notice have been within the 
powers of the Branches; and 
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d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980), was deducted by the Branches' and deposited in the Cent ral Zakat Fund 
established under section 7 of that Ordinance. 

We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per 
cent of the total loans and advances of the Branches'. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is 
Amyn Malik. 

Date: 26 March 2019 
Karachi 

IJ,.e~ /_ ~- .J ' t..t.. . 
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2018 

Note 2018 2017 2016 

Restated Restated 

ASSETS ------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------------------------- ' -! 

Cash and balances w ith treasury banks 6 27,658,474 15,585,904 8,377,564 

Balances with other banks 7 4,015,685 1,461,579 3,685, 177 

Lendings to f inancial institutions 8 207,924,067 118,285,067 8,687,263 

Investments 9 175,857,020 235,089,040 209,336,742 

Advances 10 22,713,422 8,164,082 6,096,727 

Fixed assets 11 590,331 581,047 641,995 

Intangible assets 12 2,788 51 

Deferred tax assets 13 7,961 633 2,328 

Other assets 14 20,493,816 12,681,51 1 9,051 ,822 

459,263,564 391,848,863 245,879,669 

LIABILITIES 

Bills payable 16 1,292,129 4,573,858 831,033 

Borrowings 17 355,486,464 303,724,827 169,531 ,176 

Deposits and other accounts 18 66,540,142 57,698, 198 52,779,401 

Liabilit ies against assets subject to finance lease 
Subordinated debt 
Deferred tax liabilities 13 

Other liabilities 19 9,686,726 9,01 1,917 14,953,430 

433,005,461 375,008,800 238,095,040 
NET ASSETS 26,258,103 16,840,063 7,784,629 

REPRESENTED BY 

Head office capital account 20 20,829,285 9,506,699 3,775,797 
Deficit on revaluation of assets - net of tax 21 (57,530) (32,050) (38,542) 
Unremitted profit 5,486,348 7,365,414 4,047,374 

26,258,103 16,840,063 7,784,629 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these f inancial statements. 

11 4t~ 
Head of Finance 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Profit and Loss Account 
For the year ended December 3 1, 2018 

Note 2018 2017 

(Rupees in '000) 

Mark-up/ return/ interest earned 23 26,745,817 19,020,812 

Mark-up/ return/ interest expensed 24 18,016,523 12,669, 163 

Net mark-up/ interest income 8,729,294 6,351,649 

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME 

Fee and commission income 25 957,047 769,588 

Dividend income 

Foreign exchange income 1,298,623 (198,730) 

Income/ (loss) f ram derivatives 

Gain/ (loss) on securit'ies 

Other income 26 12 521 

Total non-markup/ interest income 2,255,682 571,379 

Total income 10,984,976 6,923,028 

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES 

Operating expenses 27 2,257,492 1 .401 ,970 

Workers Welfare Fund 28 168,245 106,721 

Other charges 

Total non-markup/ interest expenses 2,425,737 1,508,691 

Prof it before provisions 8,559,239 5,414,337 

Provisions and write offs - net 29 146,963 82,465 

Extra ordinary/ unusual items 

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8,412,276 5,331,872 

Taxation 30 3,345,296 2,013,206 

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 5,066,980 3,318,666 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these f inancial statements. 

Chie Executive Officer 

~ 
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Industria l and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 

Profit after taxation for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods 

Movement in (deficit) / surplus on reva luation of investments - net of tax 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods 

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefi t obligations - net of tax 

Total comprehensive income 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral pa rt of these financial statements. 

Chie Executive Officer 

2018 2017 

(Rupees in '000) 

5,066,980 3,318,666 

(25,480) 6,492 

44 (626) 

(25,436) 5,866 

5,041 ,544 3,324,532 

i .. !J 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended December 31. 2018 

Balance as at December 31 , 2016 as previously reported 

Reclassification of surplus to equity (note 211 

Balance as at December 31, 2016 · restated 

Tot al comprehensive income for the 
year ended December 31, 2017 

Profit after taxation for the year ended December 31, 201 7 

Other comprehensive income • net of tax 
Total comprehensive income for t he 

year ended December 31, 2017 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 

Remittances received from head office 

Exchange adiustments on 
revaluation of capital 

Balance as at January 01, 2018 · restated 

Total comprehensive income for the 
year ended December 31 , 2018 

Profit after taxation for the year ended December 31, 2018 

Other comprehensive income • net of tax 
Total comprehensive income for t he 

year ended December 31, 2018 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 

Transferred from payable to head office 

Transfer from un remitted profit to head office account 

Exchange adjustments on 
revaluation of capital 

Balance as at December 31, 2018 

Note 

20.2 

Head office 
capital 
account 

Surplus / 
(Deficit) on 

revaluation of 
investments 

Unremitted 
profit 

Total 

.............................. . (Rupees In '000) ·····························-

3,775,797 4,047,374 7,823,171 

(38,542) (38,542) 

3,775,797 (38,542) 4,047,374 7,784,629 

DC 3,318,666 3,318,666 

(626) 5,866 

6,492 3,31 8,040 3,324, 532 

5,273,260 5,273,260 

457,642 457,642 

9,506,699 (32,050) 7,365,414 16,840,063 

D ~ 5,066,980 

· ~ .._ __ 44___. ....__(2_5_,43_6_) 

5,066,980 

(25,480) 5,067,024 5,041,544 

20.2 1,727,072 1,727,072 

20.2 6,946,090 (6,946,090) 

2,649,424 2,649,424 

20,829,285 (57,530) 5,486,348 26,258,103 

~ d notes 1 to 45 f 

VA o--'f"' \ ) 

an integral part of these financial statements. 

' 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 

Note 2018 2017 
(Rupees in '000) 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before taxation 8,412,276 5,331,872 

Adjustments: 
Depreciation 27 53,441 73,782 

Amortisation 27 580 51 

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets (43) 

Charge for defined benefit plan 34.7 4,162 8,587 

Provisions and write offs 29 146,963 82,465 

8,617,422 5,496,714 

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets 
Lendings to financia l institutions 
Advances (14,696,303) (2, 149,820) 
Other assets (7,812,305) (4,886,105) 

(22,508,608) (7,035,925) 
Increase / (decrease) in operat ing liabilities 
Bills payable (3,281,729) 3,742,825 
Borrowings 

Deposits 8,841,944 4,918,797 
Other liabilities 1,897,408 (4,916,354) 

7,457,623 3,745,268 
(6,433,563) 2,206,057 

Contribution made to defined benefit plan 34.7 (6,344) (2,382) 
Income tax paid (2,832,205) (1,790,580) 
Net cash flow (used in) / from operat ing activities (9,272,112) 413,095 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Investments in operating fixed assets 11. 1 (62,725) (12,839) 
Intangible assets purchased 12 (3,368) 
Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 48 
Net investments in available for sale securities 59,192,820 (25,742,311) 
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 59,126,727 (25,755,102) 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Remittance received from Head office 20.2 5,273,260 

Exchange adjustments on revaluation of capital 2,649,424 457,642 
Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 52,504,039 (19,611,105) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (168,392,277) (148,781,172) 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31 (115,888,238) (168,392,277) 

ed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

'i 
I 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

The Pakistan branches of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited ('the Branches') have commenced their operations 

in Pakistan with effect from August 18, 2011 . Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited is incorporated in the People's 

Republic of China. 

The Bank presently operates through three branches (December 31, 2017: three branches) in Pakistan and is engaged in 
banking activities permissible under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. The registered office of the Branches is located 
at 16th Floor, Ocean Tower, Block 9, Clifton, Karachi. The credit rating of the Bank is disclosed in note 32 to these f inancial 

statements. 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to Islamic modes, the 

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible form of trade-related modes of 

f inancing includes purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate mark-up on 

price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these financial 

statements as such, but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon. 

These f inancial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of f inancial statements prescribed by the State 

Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circular No. 02, dated 25 January 2018. 

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

3.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance w ith approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 

Approved ac~ounting standards comprise of : 

International Financial Reporting Standards OFRS) and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act 2017. 

Provisions of and directives issued by the Banking Companies Ordinance. 1962; 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017; and 

Directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the SBP from t ime to time. 

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by 

the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of the IFRS, requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail. 

3.2 The State Bank of Pakistan has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, 'financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement' and International Accounting Standard OAS) 40, 'Investment Property' for banking companies 

through BSD Circular Letter No. 10 dated August 26, 2002 till further instructions. Further, the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan has deferred the applicability of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, 'Financial 

Instruments: Disclosures' on banks through its notification S.R.O 411 (I) /2008 dated April 28, 2008. Accordingly, the 

requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statements. However, 
investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan 
through various circulars. 

3.3 IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was notified by the SECP as applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 

2018. However. the SECP vide its SRO Letter no 229 (I)/ 2019 dated 14 February 2019, has deferred the applicability of this 

standard to banks, to accounting periods beginning on or after June 30, 2019. 

3.4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective 

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) and the amendments and interpretations thereto 
will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019: 

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) 
clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 1 2. The 

interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Branches' financial statements. 



IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces 

existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction Contracts' and IFRIC 13 
'Customer Loyalty Programmes'. The Branches are currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes 

required in revenue recognition policies on adoption of the standard. 

JFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and amendment - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and 
measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on f inancial assets, and 
new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of 
financial instruments from IAS 39. The Branches are currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes 
required in classification and measurement of financial instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of the 

standard. 

IFRS 16 'Leases' (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing 
guidance, including IAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease·, SIC-15 'Operating 
Leases- Incentives' and SIC-27 'Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease' . IFRS 16 
introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 

There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to 

the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Branches are currently in the 

process of analyzing the potential impact of its lease arrangements that w ill result in recognition of right to use assets and 

liabilities on adoption of the standard. 

Amendment to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint 
Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that 
finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future 
(referred to as long-term interests or 'LTI '). The amendment and accompanying example state that L Tl are in the scope of 
both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not 
likely to have an impact on Branches' financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined 
benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the 
period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is 
dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on 

Branches' financial statements. 

Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a Business (efiective for business combinations for which 

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The IASB has issued 

amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a 

group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must 

include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create 

outputs. The amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the 

future and therefore would not have an impact on past 

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors (efiective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The amendments are intended to 
make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of 

materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when 

preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance w ith IFRS Standards. 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved 

accounting standards: 

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment 
when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures 
its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its 
previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business. 

IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on 
financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently w ith the transaction that generates the distributable 
profits. 

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing 
originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale 



The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and are not likely to have an 

impact on Branches' financial statements. 

3.5 Standards, interpretations and amendmenta to accounting and reporting standards that are effective In the current year 

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD Circular No. 02 of 2018 dated January 25, 2018 has amended the format of 

annual financial statements of banks. All banks are directed to prepare their annual financial statements on the revised format 

effective from the accounting year ending December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the Branches have prepared these financial 

statements on the new format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan. The adoption of new format required remeasurement 

and reclassification of comparative information and also introduced additional disclosure requirements. Accordingly a third 

statement of financial position has been presented at the beginning of the preceding period (i.e. December 31, 2016) in 
accordance with the requirement of International Accounting Standard 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements. 

In addition, there are certain other new standards and interpretations of and amendments to existing accounting standards that 
have become applicable to the Branches for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1. 2018. These are considered 

either to not be relevant or to not have any significant impact on the Branches' financial statements. 

4 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 

4.1 Accounting convention 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that available for sale investments, 

derivative financial instruments and forward foreign exchange contracts are measured at fair value and defined benefit 

obligation carried at present value. 

4.2 Critical accounting estimates and Judgments 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 

judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 

income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 

factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the 

judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
account ing estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period. or in 

the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Significant accounting estimates and areas where judgements were made by the management in the application of accounting 

policies are as follows: 

classification and provisions of investments (note 5.5) 

income taxes (notes 5.13 and 30) 

depreciation and amortization of operating fixed assets (note 5.8) 

classification and provisioning against non-performing loans and advances (note 5.7) 

fair value of derivatives (note 5.4) 

defined benefit plan (note 5.10) 

impairment of operating fixed assets (note 5.8) 

contingencies (note 22) 

4.3 Functional and Presentation Currency 

These f inancial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Branches' functional and presentation currency. 

The amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as stated otherwise. 

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with those of the 
previous f inancial year, except for changes explained in note 5. 1: 

5.1 Change in accounting policies 

5.1.1 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed through the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017. However, as directed by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular No. 23 dated October 4, 2017, the financial reporting 
requirements of the Companies Act. 2017 were only made applicable for reporting periods starting from January 1, 2018. 

5.1.2 The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD Circular No. 02 of 2018 dated January 25. 2018 has amended the format of 
annual financial statements of banks. All banks are directed to prepare their annual financial statements on the revised format 



effective from the accounting year ending December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the Branches have has prepared these financial 

statements on the new format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan. The adoption of new format required remeasurement 
and reclassification of comparative information and also introduced additional disclosure requirements . Accordingly a third 
statement of financial position has been presented at the beginning of the preceding period (i.e. December 31. 2016) in 
accordance with the requirement of International Accounting Standard 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements. The adoption of 
revised format has resulted in following significant changes: 

Acceptances amounting to Rs 1,945 million (2017: Rs 647 million, 2016: Rs 1.901 million) which were previously shown as 
part of contingencies and commitments are now recognised on balance sheet both as assets and liabilities. They are included 
in Other Assets (note 14) and Other Liabilities (note 19); 

Intangibles (note 12) amounting to Rs 2,788 thousand (2017: Rs nil. 2016: Rs 51 thousand) were previously shown as part of 
fixed assets (note 11) are now shown separately on the statement of financial position; and 

Provision against advances amounting to Rs 82.465 million which was previously shown separately in the profit and loss 
account has now been shown as part of provisions and write-offs in note 29. 

5.2 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks in current and 
deposit accounts and !endings and borrowings having original maturity of three months or less. 

5.3 Lendlngs to / borrowings from financial Institutions 

The Branches enter into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These 
are recorded as under: 

Sale of securities under repurchase agreements 

Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as investments and the 

counter party liability is included in borrowings. The difference between the sale and contracted repurchase price is accrued on a 

time proportion basis over the period of the contract and recorded as an expense. 

Purchase of securities under resale agreements 

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo) are not recognized in the financial statements as investments and 

the amount extended to the counter party is included in !endings. The difference between the purchase and contracted resale 
price is accrued on a time proportion basis over the period of the contract and recorded as income. 

5.4 Financial instruments 

5.4.1 Financial assets and liabilities 

Financial assets and liabilities carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances. !endings to 

financial institutions, investments, advances. certain receivables, bills payable, borrowings from financial institutions. deposits. 

and certain payables. The particular recognition methods adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are 
disclosed in the individual policy notes associated w ith them. 

5.4.2 Derivative financial instruments 

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date at which the derivative contract is entered into 

and subsequently re-measured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative instruments are carried as 
assets where fair value is positive and as liabilities where fair value is negative. Any changes in the fair value of derivative 

financial instruments are taken to the profit and loss account. 

5.4.3 Off setting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is 

a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the Branches intend either to settle on a net basis. or to rea lize 

the assets and to settle the liabilit ies simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also off-set 
and the net amount is reported in the financial statements. 



5.5 Investment 

5.5.1 Classification 

The Branches classifies its investments as follows: 

Held for trading 

These are investments, which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices, interest 
rate movements and dealers margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists. 

Available for sale 

These are investments which do not fall under the 'held for trading' and 'held to maturity' categories. 

Held to maturity 

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and f ixed maturities and the Branches have positive intent and 

ability to hold them till maturity. 

Loans and receivables 

These assets are initially recogn ised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

5.5.2 Regular way contracts 

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery w ithin the time frame established by regulation or market 
convention are recognized at settlement date, which is the date at which the Branches agrees to settle the purchase or sale of 

investments. 

5.5.3 Initial recognition and measurement 

Investments are initially recognized at fair value which, in the case of investments other than held for t rading, includes 
transaction costs associated with the investments. Transaction costs on investments held for trading are expensed as incurred. 

5.5.4 Subsequent measurement 

In accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan, quoted securities other than those classified as 'held to 

maturity' are subsequently re-measured to market value. Surplus/ (deficit) arising on revaluation of securities classified as 'held 
for trading' is taken to profit and loss account and for securities classified as 'Available for sale' is taken to a separate account 

shown in the statement of f inancial position as part of equity and is taken to the profit and loss account when realized upon 
disposal or when the investment is considered to be impaired. Investments classified as 'Held to maturity' are carried at 

amortized cost using effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss recognized to reflect irrecoverable amounts. 

5.5.5 Impairment 

Provision for diminution in the values of securities is made after considering impairment, if any, in the value. Provision for 
impairment against debt securities is made as per the aging criteria prescribed by the Prudential Regu lations of SBP. In case of 
impairment of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in surplus/ (deficit} on 
revaluation of securities on the statement of financial position as part of equity is removed there from and recognised in the 
profit and loss account. 

5.6 Acceptances 

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Branches to pay bill of exchange drawn on customers. Acceptances are recognised 
as financial liability in the statement of financial position with a contractual right of reimbursement from the customer as a 
f inancial asset. Therefore, commitments in respect of acceptances have been accounted for as financial assets and financial 
liabilities. 

5.7 Loans and advances 

Loans and advances are stated net off provisions against non-performing advances. Specific and general provisions are made in 
accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan from time to time. The net 
provision made/ re·versed during the year is charged to profit and loss account and accumulated provision is adjusted against 
advances. Advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery. The amount so written off is a book 



entry and does not necessarily prejudice the Branches' right of recovery against the customer. 

The Bank determines write-offs in accordance with the criteria prescribed by the SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 06 dated June 
05, 2007. 

5.8 Operating fixed assets and depreciation 

5.8.1 Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific 
assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under this head. These are transferred to specific assets 
as and when assets become available for use. 

5.8.2 Tangible assets 

Operating fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account by applying the straight-line method using the rates specified in note 11.1 to 

these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking into account residual value, if any. The 
residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. 
Depreciation on additions is charged from the date on which the assets are available for use and ceases on the date on which 

they are disposed off. 

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Subsequent costs are included in 
the assets' carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Branches and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed assets are taken to the profit and loss account. 

5.8.3 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful live as specified 
in note 12 to the financial statements. The useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at 
each reporting date. Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at acquisition cost, less impairment loss, if any. 

5.8.4 Impairment 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment whenever events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of these assets may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of an asset 

is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 

such assets is estimated and impairment losses are recognised immediately in the f inancial statements. The resulting 
impairment loss is taken to the profit and loss account except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted 
against related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on reva luation of that 

asset. 

5.9 Borrowings / deposits and their cost 

a) Borrowings/ deposits are recorded at the proceeds received. 

bl Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using effective mark-up/ interest 
rate method to the extent that they are not directly attributable to the acquisition of or construction of qualifying assets. 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (one that 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. 

5.10 Staff retirement benefits 

Defined benefit plan 

The Branches operate an approved funded gratuity scheme covering eligible employees (excluding expatriates) whose period of 
employment with the Branches is five years or more. Contributions to the fund are made on the basis of actuarial 
recommendations. Projected Unit Credit Method is used for the actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
immediately in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling through the profit and loss account. Gratuity is 
payable to staff on completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service under the scheme. 



Defined contribution phm 

The Branches operate an approved provident fund for all of its permanent employees (excluding expatriates) in respect of which 
contributions are made to discharge liability under the respective rules of the schemes. Equal monthly contributions are made 
both by the Branches and its employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary in accordance with the terms of the 
scheme. The Branches have no further payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
recognized as an expense when the obligation to make payments to the fund has been established. Prepaid contributions are 
recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 

5.11 Foreign currency translation 

Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Branches operates. 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates 
prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 

the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in 
the profit and loss account. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevailing at the 
date of initial recognition of the non-monetary assets/ liabilities. 

Forward contracts are valued at forward rates applicable to the respective maturities of the relevant foreign exchange contract. 

Forward contracts other than contracts with the State Bank of Pakistan relating to foreign currency deposits are valued at 
forward rates applicable to the respective maturities of the relevant foreign exchange contract. 

Forward purchase contracts w ith the State Bank of Pakistan relating to foreign currency deposits are valued at the spot rate 
prevailing on the reporting date. The forward cover fee payable on such contracts is amortised over the term of the 
contracts. 

Commitments 

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are disclosed at contracted rates. Contingent liabilities / 
commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at 
the exchange rates ruling on the reporting date. 

5.12 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will f low to the Branches and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. The following recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognized. 

5.12.1 Advances and investments 

Mark-up income on advances and investments is recognized on a time proportion basis. Where debt securities are purchased 
at a premium or discount, those premiums/ discounts are amortized through the profit and loss account over the remaining 
maturity, using the effective yield method. 

5.12.2 Fee, commission and brokerage 

Fee, commission and brokerage income except income from guarantees are accounted for on receipt basis. Commission on 
guarantees is recognized on time proportion basis. 

Other income is recognized on accrual basis. 

5. 13 Taxation 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and loss account 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in 
statement of comprehensive income. 



.. 

5.13.1 Current 

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance w ith the prevailing laws and at 

the prevailing rates for taxation on income earned by the Branches. The amount of current tax payable is the best estimate of the 

tax amount expected to be paid that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted 

or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

5.13.2 Deferred 

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for the taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax 

provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the 
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. 

5.14 Provision for claims under guarantees 

Provision for guarantee claims and other oft balance sheet obligations is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty 

exists for the Branches to settle the obligation. Expected recoveries are recognised by debiting the customer's account. Charge 

to the profit and loss account is stated net-off expected recoveries. 

Other provisions 

Other provisions are recognised when the Branches have a present. legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be 

made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

5.15 Segment reporting 

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Branches that is engaged either in providing product or services (business 
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is 

subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Branches' primary format of reporting is based 

on business segments. The details are as follows: 

5.15.1 Business segments 

Trading and sales 

It includes fixed income, equity, foreign exchanges, commodit ies, credit, funding, own position securities, lending and repos, 

brokerage debt and prime brokerage. 

Branch Banking 

Includes deposits and banking services to private individuals and businesses. 

Corporate finance 

This represents the banking services (on and off balance sheet finance and guarantees) including t reasury and international 
trade activities to large corporate customers, multinational companies, government and semiijovernment departments and 

institutions and SM Es treated as corporate under Prudential Regulations. 

There are no geographical segments as the Branches only operate in Pakistan. 



6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note 2018 2017 

(Rupees in '000) 

In hand 

Local currency 161,987 79,887 

Foreign currency 66,902 29,157 

228,889 109,044 

With State Bank of Pakistan in 
Local currency current account 6.1 5,677,467 5,329,577 

Foreign currency current account 6.2 138,862 110.417 

Foreign currency deposit account 6.3 21,613,256 10,036,866 

27,429,585 15,476,860 

27,658.474 15,585,904 

6.1 This includes statutory liquidity reserve maintained with the SBP under Section 22 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. 

6.2 As per BSD Circu lar No. 9 dated December 3, 2007, cash reserve of 5% is required to be maintained with the State Bank of 
Pakistan on deposits held under the New Foreign Currency Accounts Scheme (FE-25 deposits). 

6.3 This includes special cash reserve of 15% required to be maintained w ith the State Bank of Pakistan on FE-25 deposits as 
specif ied in BSD Circular No. 14 dated June 21 , 2008. Prof it rates on these deposits are f ixed by SBP on a monthly basis. The 

State Bank of Pakistan has not remunerated these deposit accounts during the year. It also includes capital maintained w ith SBP 

in accordance with the requirements of Section 13 of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 amounting to USO 150 million 
(December 31 , 2017: USO 86.098 million). 

7 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 

Outside Pakistan 

In current account 

In deposit account 

Note 

7. 1 

2018 201 7 

(Rupees in '000) 

4,015,~5 , ~I __ 1_.4_6_1 _.~_79~' 
4,015,685 1,461 ,579 · 

4,015,685 1.461,579 

7.1 This represents placement of foreign currency funds w ith other ICBC branches at interest rates ranging from 0% to 1.6% per 
annum (December 31 ,2017: 0% to 1.4% per annum}. 

8 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Call money lending 

Repurchase agreement landings (Reverse Repo) 

Less: provision held against lending to f inancial institutions 

Lending to financial institutions - net of provision 

Note 

8. 1 

8.2 

8.1 This represent call lending at a mark-up rate of 10.4% per annum w ith maturity in January 2019. 

2018 201 7 

(Rupees in '000) 

2,000,000 
205,924,067 
207,924,067 

207,924,067 

118,285,067 

118,285,067 

118,285,067 

8.2 These represent repurchase agreement !endings w ith various local banks at a mark-up rate ranging from 10.05% to 10.30% 
(December 31, 2017: 5.75% to 5.90% per annum) w ith maturity in January 2019 ( December 31, 2017: March 2018). 

8.3 Particulars of lending 2018 2017 
(Rupees In '000) 

In local currency 207,924,067 118,285,067 
In foreign currencies 

207,924,067 11 8,285,067 



8.4 Securiti11 held II collateral agalnrt Lending 
to financl1l ln1tltutlon1 

Market Treasury Bills 
Total 

Held by Bank 

2011 

Further given 
u collateral 

Held by Bank 

2017 

Funher given es 
collateral 

-----------·---IRupee1 In '000)----

205,924,087 205,824,087 1 I B,285,067 
205,1124,087 205.1124.087 118.285.067 

Total 

118,285,067 
t 18.285.067 

8 INVESTMENTS 2011 2017 
Colt/ Provllion for Surplu1 / 

AmortJHd Carrying Value Cost/ Provision 1or Surplus / 

coat 
dlmlnutlon (Deficit) Amortised cost diminution (Oef1c1tl 8.1 lnveatmontl by type: Carrying Value 

-··--·---·······-------·--- ··- ·---(RupH1 In '000)---··-·------------- - -------
Av1i11ble-for-ule H curiti11 
Federal Government Securities 

Total lnvoatmont• 

175.845.528 11 
175,845,528 

175,845,528 

II 111.508)11 
(BU Oi) 

111.5081 

175.m .020 11 235.138.348 11 II 149.308>1 I 235.089.040 I 
175.157,020 235, 138,348 149,3081 235,089,040 

175,157,020 235.138.348 149.3081 235.089.040 

2018 2017 

9.2 lnveatmentl by Hgm1nt1: 

Federal Government Securitiea: 
Market Treasury Bills 
Pakistan Investment Bonds 

Total lnveatmentl 

9.3 Quality of Avellablo for Salo SecuritiH 

Colt/ Provllion for 
AmortiHd diminution 

coat 
- - •••••·•-• H•+••-•••-• 

174,918,138 
1,029.3811 

175,845,521 

175.845,521 

Details regard ing quality ol Available for Sele IAFS) securities are as follows 

Federal Government Securitlea • Government guaranteed 
Market Treasury Bills 
Pakistan Investment Bonds 

II 

Surplu1 / Carrying Cost / 
!Deficit) Value Amonised cost 

--·-------(Rupee• In '000)--

(13,1114)1 174,152,475 234,059,028 

(24,844): 1,004.545 1,079,320 
(11,508) 175,157,020 235, 138,34B 

(II.SOI) 175,857.020 235,138,348 

ProV1sion for 
diminution 

Surplus/ 
IOef1citl 

Carrying Value 

----- ---------
141,289) 234,01 7,739 

18.019) 1,071,301 
(49,308) 235,089.040 

149,3081 235.089.040 

2011 2017 
Cort 

(Rupeu In '000) 

174,918,131 
1,029.3811 

175,945.521 

234,059,028 
1.079.320 

235.138.348 

9.4 Investments include cenain approved/ government securities which ere held by the B11nches to comply with the Statutory Liquidity Requirement determined on the basis ol the 
Branches' demand end time liabilities as set out under section 29 of the Banking Companies Ordinance. 1962. 

10 ADVANCES 

Loans. cash credits, running finances, etc. 
Bills discounted and purchased 
Advances • gross 

P1ovis1on against advances 
• Specific 
• General 

Advances • net of provision 

10.1 P1rticul1r1 of adv1nc11 IGro11) 

In local currency 

Nots 

10.3 

Performing Non Performing Total 
2011 2017 2018 2017 2011 2017 

---------·-·--·----- - IRupee1 In '000)-----·-··---··--- ----

14,508.224 3,678,734 14,SC>e.224 3,678,734 

1,438.828 4,567,813 1,438,1128 4,567.813 

22,842,150 8,246,547 22,M2,l50 8,246,547 

II II (221~8) 11 (82.~6511 
(221,428) 182,465) 

22,713.422 8,164.082 

122a.~81 I I (82.~65)11 
1228,428) (82,465) 

22,713.422 8.164.082 

2011 2017 
!Rupee, In '000) 

22,842,150 8.246.547 
22.842.850 8,246.547 

10.2 No advances have been placed under non-performing status (December 31, 201 7: Nill. 

2017 
Total 

10.3 P1rtlcul1r1 of provl1lon 1galnat advance• 
Specific General Total Specific Gene11I 

2011 

·---·-------····-·-·- ·- IRupeH In '000)----··---------- - -

Opening balance 
Exchange ad1ustments 
Charge for the year 
Reversals 

Closing balance 

II 
12,465 

l 4'.~ II 
146,883 
221,421 

82,465 

,.e.~1 1 II 
146,883 
221,421 

10.3.1 In line with prudent policies, general provision against advances represents provision maintained at an amount equal to 1 % ol the performing portfolio. 

10.4 Part.Jculara of provlalon against advance• 2011 
Specific General Total Specific 

··----···(RupeH In '000) 

In local currency II m,421 11 221,421 11 II 
221.428 228,421 

82,~65 11 82,~65 I 
82.465 82.465 
82.465 82,465 

2017 
General Total 

82.465 I I 82,465 I 
82,465 82.465 



Note 2018 2017 
11 FIXED ASSETS (Rupees In '000) 

Property and equipment 11 .1 590,331 581,047 

11.1 Property and Equipment 

2018 

Electrical, 

Building 
Leasehold Furniture and 

Vehicles 
office and 

Total Improvement fixture computer 
equipment 

.......................... _ .. _____ .. ___ 
·--·· (Rupees In '000) ····--···--·--·--····--·-

At January 1, 201 8 

Cost 443,100 276,102 68,355 21 ,154 92,909 901,620 
Accumulated depreciation (29,559) (160,761) (38,716) (9,688) (81,849) (320,573) 
Net book value 413,541 115,341 29,639 11,466 11,060 581,047 

Year ended December 2018 

Opening net book value 41 3,541 115,341 29,639 11,466 11,060 581,047 
Additions 4,837 15,856 31,945 10,087 62,725 
Disposals 

Depreciation charge (14,759) (14,399) (1 1,712) (3,572) (8,999) (53,441) 

Other adjustments/ transfers 

Closing net book value 398,782 105,779 33,783 39,839 12,148 590,331 

At December 31, 2018 

Cost 443,100 280,939 84,21 1 53,099 102,996 964,345 
Accumulated depreciation (44,318) (175,160) (50,428) (13,260) (90,848) (374,014) 
Net book value 398,782 105,779 33,783 39,839 12,148 590,331 

Rate of depreciation (percentage) 3.33 10to 39 20 16.70 33 

2017 

Leasehold Furniture and 
Electrical, office 

Building 
improvement f ixture 

Vehicles and com puter Total 
equipm ent 

- ---------- (Rupees 1n '000) -----------

At January 1, 2017 

Cost 443,100 276.1 02 62,317 21,154 101,670 904,343 

Accumulated depreciation (14,800) (124,977) (28,793) (6,115) (87,663) (262,348) 

Net book value 428,300 151,125 33,524 15,039 14.007 641 ,995 

Year ended December 2017 

Opening net book va lue 428,300 151,125 33,524 15,039 14,007 641,995 

Additions 6,408 6.431 12,839 

Disposals (370) (15,192) (15,562) 

Depreciation charge (14,759) (35,784) (10,288) (3,573) (9,378) (73,782) 

Other adjustments/ transfers 365 15,192 15,557 

Closing net book value 413,54 1 115,341 29,639 11.466 11,060 581 ,047 

At December 31, 2017 

Cost 443,100 276,102 68,355 21,154 92,909 901,620 

Accumulated depreciation (29,559) (160,761) (38,716) (9,688) (81 ,849) (320,573) 

Net book va lue 4 13,541 115,341 29,639 11.466 11,060 581,047 

Rate of depreciation (percentage) 3.33 10 to 39 20 16.70 33 

11 .2 Included in cost of property and equipment are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs. 232.69 million (December 31. 2017: 
Rs. 80.55 million). 

~~~ 



12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

At January 1 
Cost 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 
Net book value 

Year ended December 
Opening net book value 
Add1t1ons: 
- developed internally 
• d11ectly purchased 

· through business combinations 

Impairment loss recognised in the profit and loss account - net 
Disposals 
Amort isation charge 
Exchange rate adJustments 
Other ad1ustments 
Closing net book value 

At December 31 
Cost 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 

Net book value 

Rate of amortisation (percentage) 

Useful hie 

2018 2017 
(Rupees In '000) 

143 143 
______ (_14_3-'-) (921 

51 

51 

[3CJ 
3,368 

(580) 

2,788 

3,511 
(723) 

2,788 

20 to 33 

3 to sy1era 
50 

(51) 

143 
(143) 

2 years 

12. 1 Included in cost of intangible assets are fu lly amortized items still in use having cost of Rs. 143 thousand (2017: nil). 

13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

Deductible Temporary Differences on 
• Def1c11 on revaluation of investments 
- 'Remeasurement of defined benefit hab1hty 

Taxable Temporary Differences on 
- Accelerated tax depreciation 

Deductible Temporary Differences on 
- Def1c1t on revaluation of investments 

• Remeasurement of defined benefit hab1hty 

Taxable Temporary Differences on 
- Accelerated tax depreciation 

14 OTHER ASSETS 

Income/ mark-up accrued in local currency 
Income/ mark-up accrued in foreign currency 
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 
Acceptances 
Unrealized gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 
Local clearing account 
Others 

15 CONTINGENT ASSETS 

There were no contingent assets as at the statement of financial pos1t1on date. 

16 BILLS PAYABLE 

In Pakistan 
Outside Pakistan 

17 BORROWINGS 

Un•ecurtld 
Call borrowings 
Overdrawn nostro accounts 

Total un•ecurtld 

2018 

At January Recognised Recgonlaed At DBC9mber 
01 2018 In P&L AIC In oa 31 2018 

····· · ···········-············· (Ru~ tn '000) -----··------

11:: II 
17,701 

(17,068) 

633 

At January 01 
2017 

II 13·:ill 
13,1197 

(6,369) 

j&,3691 13,697 

2017 

Recognised in 
P&LA/C 

Recgonised in 
OCI 

30::1 
31,398 

(23,437) 

7 961 

At December 
31 2018 

------ -- (Rupees in '0001--- ----

20
·~~ 11 11 13·~;;'1 I 11·:!~ I 

20,859 ~-- -~ L.--:-::13-=, 1""50:,:-'1 '---1=7,=70.,.1-' 

118,5311 1,463 
2 328 1 463 

Note 

17.1 

(17,0681 
(31581 633 

2018 2017 
(Rupees In '000) 

1,387,999 
12,588 

132,458 
1,944,916 

16,384,860 
627,518 

3 .4n 
20,493,8111 

1..292. 129 

1.292. 129 

270,516 
11,837 

179,397 
646,625 

11 ,554,013 
17,775 

1,348 
12,681 ,511 

4,573,858 

4 573,858 

355,4811,464 303,724,827 

303 724 827 

17.1 This represents borrowings from ICBC branches outside Pakistan and f inancial institutions at mark-up rates ranging from 2.93% to 4.1 % per annum (December 
31 , 2017: 0 .55% to 4.80% per annum) maturing upto December 2019 (December 31, 2017: March 20181. 



17.2 Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies 

In local currency 
In foreign currencies 

18 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 

2018 

In local In foreign In local 

2018 2017 
(Rupees In '000) 

355,488,464 

355,486,464 

2017 
In foreign 

4,803,323 
zgs,921,504 
303,724,827 

Total 
currency currencies currency currencies Total 

·························· ···············•····•············ (Rupees in '000) ···•············· •···••··•································· 

Customers 
Current deposits 
Savings deposits 
Term deposits 

Financial Institutions 
Current deposits 
Savings deposits 
Term deposits 

18.1 Composition of deposits 
• Individuals 
• Public Sector Entities 
- Banking Companies 
· Private Sector 

5,879,952 
23,238,782 
29,951,836 
59,070,570 

4,859,211 
1,100,387 

897.395 
6,856,993 

10,739,163 
24,339,169 
30,849,231 
65,927,563 

c::Jc:Jc:J 
8,849 603,730 812,579 

59,079,419 7,480,723 66,540,142 

9,356,574 
11 ,765,558 
28,639,000 
49,761,132 

7,664 
2,843 

19,500 
30,007 

49,791,139 

35,342 
7,197,777 

599,565 
7,832,684 

LJ 
74,375 

7,907,059 

9,391,916 
18,963,335 
29,238,565 
57,593,816 

82,039 
2,843 

19,500 
104,382 

57,698,198 

2018 2017 
(Rupees in '000) 

820,559 
48,348,046 

812,579 
16,780,958 
86,540,142 

901,950 
42,722,317 

116,964 
13,956,967 
57,698,198 

18.2 This includes deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements amounting to Rs 550 million {December 31 , 2017: Rs. 360.77 
million). 

Note 2018 2017 
19 OTHER LIABILITIES (Rupees in '000) 

Mark-up/ Return/ Interest payable in local currency 1,225,190 369,122 
Mark-up/ Return/ Interest payable in foreign currency 1,959,336 952,11 1 
Performance bonus payable 19.1 1,645,004 779,643 
Commission received in advance against unfunded exposure 385,835 411,444 
Current taxation (provisions less payments) 811,549 288,900 
Acceptances 1,944,916 646,625 
Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 1,269,244 3,785,499 
Payable to head office 20.2 1,535,020 
Workers' Welfare Fund 321,919 153,695 
Withholding tax payable 12,441 28,368 
Clearing and settlements 100,718 54,529 
Payable to defined benefit plan 34.4 2,809 5,058 
Others 7,765 1,903 

9,686,726 9,011,917 

19.1 The details of provision for bonus are included in note 27 .1 

~ 
~(1'1 



20 HEAD OFFICE CAPITAL ACCOUNT· NET 

20.1 Head Office Capital Account 

Capital held as: 

1 . Interest free deposit in approved foreign exchange 
il Remitted from Head Office 
ii) Revaluation surplus allowed by the State Bank 

2018 2017 
(Rupees in '000) 

17,722.219 
3,107,066 

20,829.285 

9,049,057 
457,642 

9,506,699 

20.2 As per SBP letter no FD-SEC/6765/173-2017 dated November 29, 2017 the assigned capital of ICBC increased from USO 36.098 

million to USO 86.098 million after receipt of USO 50 million during 2017. In 2018. an amount of USO 13.9 million has been transferred 
from payable to head of fice and an amount of USO 50 million has been transferred from unremitted profit. At December 31, 2018, the 
balance held and confirmed by SBP vide letter no. Bkg. U-10/Sec.!73/59(FB)-2019 dated January 2. 2019 was USO 150 million. 

21 SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS 

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of available for sale securit ies 

Deferred tax (liability) / asset on revaluation of available for sale securities 

22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Guarantees 
Commitments 
Other contingent liabilities 

22. 1 Guarantees 

Financial guarantees 

Performance guarantees 
Other guarantees 

22.2 Commitments 

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions 

- letters of credit 

Commitments in respect of : 
- forward foreign exchange contracts 

- Forward lending 

Other commitments 

22.2.1 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts 

Purchase 

Sale 

22.2.2 Commitments in respect of forward lending 

Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend 

Note 

22. 1 
22.2 

22.2.1 
22.2.2 

22.2.3 

22.2.2.1 

2018 2017 
(Rupees in '000) 

(88,508) 
30,978 

(57,530) 

228,218,346 
1,041,367,985 

1,269,586,331 

320,902 
149,263,511 
78,633,933 

228,218,346 

1,562,035 

832, 150,455 
281,750 

207,373,745 
1,041,367,985 

422,569,824 
409,580,631 
832,150,455 

281,750 

(49,308} 

17,258 

(32,050} 

222,055,674 
1,076,817,774 

1,298,873.448 

115.444,826 
106,610,848 
222,055,674 

1,434,228 

1,067,906.193 

7,477,353 

1,076,817,774 

537,532,562 
530,373,631 

1,067,906.193 

22.2.2.1 These represents commitments that are irrevocable because they cannot be w ithdrawn at the discretion of the Bank without the risk 
of incurring significant penalty or expense . 

2018 2017 
(Rupees in '000) 

22.2.3 Commitment in respect of forward government securities transactions · Sale 207,373,745 7,477,353 

22.3 For contingencies relating to taxation, refer note 30.3 
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23 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED 

On: 

24 

a) Loans and advances 
b) Investments 
cl Lendinas to financial institutions 
dl Balances with banks 

MARK-UP/ RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED 

Deposits 
Borrowings 
Cost of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency deposits / borrowings 

25 FEE & COMMISSION INCOME 

Branch banking customer fees 
Card related fees (debit and credit cards) 
Investment banking fees 
Commission on undrawn syndicated facility 
Commission on trade 
Commission on guarantees 
Commission on remittances including home remittances 
Others 

26 OTHER INCOME 

Non operating income 

27 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Total componaetfon exponse 

Property oxpenso 
Rent&taxes 
Insurance 
Utilities cost 
Security Uncluding guards) 
RoJ)8ir & maintenance Uncluding janitorial charges) 
Depreciation 
Property Management fee 

lnformotlon tochnology oxponsos 
Software maintenance 
Hardware maintenance 
Depreciation 
Amortisation 
Netwarlc charges 
Others · 

Other operotlng oxponsos 
Legal & professional charges 
Outsourced services costs 
Travelling & conveyance 
NIFT clearing charges 
Entertainment expense 
Depreciation 
Training & development 
Postage & courier charges 
Communication 
Stationery & printing 
Marketing, advertisement & publicity 
Donations 
Commission expense 
Auditors Remuneration 
Others 

27.1 

27.2 

27.3 

2018 2017 
(Rupoes In 'OGO) 

1,002,787 418,549 
13,800,058 16,344,519 
11,924,146 2,250,430 

18,826 7,314 
26,745,817 19,020,812 

2,767,749 1,216,404 
8,536,485 4,590,728 
6,723,289 6,863,031 

18.016.523 12.669.163 

1,939 1,670 
209 145 

123,616 55,191 
27,713 

164,518 165,316 
595,082 528,143 
36,695 12,300 
7,298 6,823 

967,047 769,588 

12 521 

1,931,600 1,098,379 

47,924 53,532 
1,,n 4,846 

20,896 19,442 
13,346 11,845 
2.394 1.577 

29,158 50.543 
16,828 15,221 

136,722 157,006 

437 40 
2,197 1,008 
8,999 9.378 

580 51 
27,226 21,962 . . 
39,439 32.439 

20,762 16,796 
23,226 15,910 
29,022 26.509 

486 434 
12,364 11,437 
16,284 13.861 
6,119 3,809 
1,601 1,354 
6,186 2,197 
8,101 6.944 

10,763 3.320 . 1,083 
4,160 4,229 
5,805 2.588 
6,872 3,676 

149,731 114,146 
2.257A92 1.401.970 

27. 1 This Includes provision for bonus to all permanent staff including Chief Executive Ofllcer and is determined on the basis of employees' evaluation and the Branches' 
performance during the year. The aggregate bonus provision determined in respect of all permanent staff amounted to Rs.1.171 million (2017; Rs 488 millfon). 



27.2 Total cost tor the year relating to outsourcing act1v1t1es included in other operating act1v11ies ,s As 23.23 m illion ( 2017: 15 9 1 m1ll1on) being paid to companies incorporated in 

Pakistan The material outsourcing arrangements along w ith their nature of service 1s as follows: 

Name of Company 

Phoenix Armour 

27.J Auditors' remuneration 

Audit fee 
Fee for audit of employee funds 
Special cert iticauons and sundry advrsory services 
Out-of-pocket expenses 

28 WORKERS WELFARE FUND 

Natura of Business 

Cash transit service 

2018 2017 
(Rupees In '000) 

3,605 2,575 

1,387 1.394 

87 85 
4,248 1,0 11 

85 98 
5 805 2.588 

Through Finance Act 2008. the Federal Government introduced amendments to the Workers' Welfare Fund N'/INF) Ordinance.1 971 whereby the definition of indust11al 
establishment was extended. The amendments were challenged and confllcting judgments were rendered by various couns. Appeals against these orders were filed in the 

Supreme Court. 

The Supreme Coun of Pakis1an vrde its order dated November 10. 20 16 has held that the amendments made in the law introduced by the Federal Government for the levy of 
Workers Welfare Fund were not lawful. The Federal Board ct Revenue has filed review petitions against the above Judgment. These pe11t1ons are currently pending With the 

Supreme Court of Pakistan. 

A legal advice has been obtained by the Pakistan Banking Assoc1a11on which highlights that consequent to filing of these review petitions. a risk has arisen and the 1udgment 

1s not conclusive until the review petition is decided. Accordingly, the amount charged for Workers Welfare Fund since 2013 has not been reversed except for a partial 
reversal amounting 10 Rs. 20.3 mill ion pertaining to yoor 20 15. On prudent basis, Branches have funher charged WWF provision amounting to Rs 168.245 m1ll1on for the year 
2018 

29 PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS · NET 

Provisrons against loans & advances 

30 TAXATION 

Current 
P11or years 
Deferred 

30.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit 

Profit before taxation 

Tax at the applicable rate of 35% IDecembe1 31, 2017. 35%1 

Effect of: 
- Super tax 
• Taxation effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable income 
· Others 

10.3 

30.1.1 

2018 2017 
(Rupees In '0001 

148.963 82.465 
146,963 82,465 

3,339,306 1,905,324 
(379) 109.345 

6,369 11.4631 

3.345.296 2,013 206 

8,412,2715 5,331.872 

2,944,297 1,866.155 

342,493 92.881 
69,247 53.793 

(741) 377 

3,345.296 2,013,206 

30.1.1 Super tax for the year ended December 31. 2018 and December 31 , 2017 has been recognised al the rate of 4% for the taxable income of 2018 and 2016, respectively. 

30.2 The returns of income tax have been hied up 10 and including tax year 201 8. Except tor tax years mentioned below, all other assessment years are deemed 10 be assessed 

under section 120 of Income Tax Ordinance. 2001. 

30.3 The Frnance Act 2018 had revised the applicability of super tax brought into effect through finance act 2015 for rehabilita11on of temporary displaced person for tax year 2019. 
2020 and 2021 at the rate of 4%. 3% and 2% respect ively on the taxable income for respective years. However. the Finance Supplementary (Second Amendment) Brll 2019 
proposed levy of super tax on taxable income for tax year 2018 laccountmg year 201 71 retrospec11vely al the rate cl 4% upto tax year 2021 . The proposed amendments were 
not enacted as al 31 December 2018 and therefore. the Branches have not made super tax provision for tax year 20181 accounting year 20171 in these financial statements. 

The tax au1hori11es have passed assessment orders for the tax year 2012 10 2014 and raised addit ional demand of Rs 45 m illion on account of minimum tax under section 
113 of Income Tax Ordinance. 2001. The Branches' have filed appeal before appellate forum against these amendments and has paid full amount under protest 10 obtain stay 
on recovery of the receiving demand till the decision of Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals). The management 1s confident that the appeal will be decided in favour of 

the Branches. therefore, no provision 1s recognised in these financial statements. 

31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and Balance w ith Treasury Banks 
Balance w ith other banks 
Shon term lending to financial 1ns11tut1ons 

Short term · call bouowmgs 

2018 2017 
(Rupeu In '000) 

27,658.474 
4,015,685 

207.924,0l57 
1366,Alll,4641 

111s,aau3a1 

15,585.904 
1,461,579 

118,285,067 
(303. 724.8271 
(168.392.2771 



31.1 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

2018 

Balance as at 01 January 2018 

Changes from financing cash flows 
Remittances received from head office 

Llability related changes 

Changes in bills payable 
Changes in borrowing 
Changes in deposits and other accounts 
Changes in other liabilities 
Charge for defined benefit plan 
Non-cash based - actuarial loss on re-measurements 

of defined benefit plan • net of tax 
Effect of tax movement 
Transfer from unremitted profit to head office 

capital account 
Exchange adjustments on revaluation of capital 
Transfer of profit to reserve 

Belanca es et 31 December 2018 

Balance as at 01 January 2017 

Changes from financing cash flows 
Remittances received from head office 

Llability related changes 

Changes in bills payable 
Changes in borrowing 
Changes in deposits and other accounts 
Changes in other liabilities 
Non-cash based· actuarial loss on re-measurements 

of defined benefi t plan • net of 1ax 
Exchange adjustments on revaluation of capital 
Transfer of profit to reserve 

Balance as at 31 December 2017 

BIiia payable 

UabllhlH 

Borrowing, 
D1po1h11nd 

other 

Equtty 
HHd office 

C.pltal 
Other 

llabllhlea ac;c:ount ac;c:ountl 
··- ·-------·---- ····· (Rupees In '000) ··-----

Unramhted 
profit 

4,573.858 303,724.827 67,698,198 9,011 ,917 9,606,699 7,366,414 

(3,281,729) . 
61,761.637 

8,841,944 . 
. 170.336 1,727,072 

(671 

(2,182) 
606,722 

. . 5,946,090 (6.946.0901 
. . 

. 2,649.424 6,067,024 
(3,281,7291 61,761,637 8,841,944 1174.809 11.322,686 (1,879.0641 

1.292,129 366,486,464 66,640,142 9,686,726 20.829.286 6,486.348 

2017 
Liabilities Equity 

Bills payable Borrowings 
Deposits and Head office . . 

other accounts Other liabili ties Capital account Unrem,tted profit 

--- -------- (Rupees in '000) ------------

831.033 169.531. 176 52,779,401 13.052.499 3,775,797 4.047.374 

5,273.260 

3,742.825 
134,193.651 

4,918,797 
(4.686.5811 

(6261 
457.642 

3,318,040 

3,742,825 134.193,651 4.918.797 (4,687.2071 4 57,642 3.318,040 

4.573.858 303,724,827 57.698,198 8,365.292 9.506,699 7,365.414 

Total 

391 .880,913 

(3,281,729) 
61,761,637 
8,841,944 
1,897,408 

(671 

(2,182) 
606,722 

. 

. 
7,716,448 

67,440,181 

469.321,094 

Total 

244.017.280 

5,273.260 

3, 742.825 
134,193,651 

4,918,797 
(4.686,5811 

(6261 
457,642 

3,318.040 
141,943.748 

391,234,288 

32 CREDIT RATING 

33 

Moody's Investor Services Inc. has assigned a long term credit rating of A2 and a short term credit ra ting of P-1 to the head off ice of the Branches as at 28 June 2018 

(December 2017: Al for long term and P-1 for short terml. 

2018 
STAFF STRENGTH 

Permanent 
On Branches contract 
Branches· own staff strength at the end of the year 

(Number) 

99 
3 

102 

2017 

92 
3 

95 

33. 1 In add1t1on to the above. 08 (December 2017: 181 employees of outsourcing services companies were assigned to the Branches as at the end of the year to perform services 

other than guarding and janitorial services. 

34 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 

34. 1 General description 

The Branches operate an approved gratuity fund registered in October 2013 w .e.f July 2013 for all its local permanent employees who have completed the qualifying period 
as defined in the scheme. In the current year, the branches have carried out an actuarial valuation on 31 December 2018 using Projected Unit Credit Method and recorded the 

obligation accordingly. 

34.2 Number of Employees under the scheme 

The number of employees covered under the following defined benefit schemes are: 
2018 2017 

·--··-·· (Numberl -·---

Gratuity fund 53 45 



34.3 Principal actuarial assumptions r 
r 
r 
r 

The actuarial valuations were carried out as at December 31,2018 using the following significant assumptions: 

Discount rate 
Expected rate of salary increase 
Mortality rates 

I 34.4 Reconclllatlon of (receivable from) / payable to defined benefit plans 

r 
r 
r . 

r 
r ' 

r 
r ' 

I 

r 

...... 

r-
r ' 

Present value of obligations 
Fair value of plan assets 
(Receivable) / payable 

34.5 Movement In defined benefit obligations 

Obligations at the beginning of the year 
Current service cost 
Past service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid by the Bank 
Re-measurement loss / (gain) due to experience adjustment 
Obligations at the end of the year 

34.6 Movement In fair value of plan assets 

Fair value at the beginning of the year 
Interest income on plan assets 
Contribution by the Bank - net 
Benefits paid 
Re-measurements: Net return on plan assets 

over interest income gain / (loss) 
Fair value at the end of the year 

34.7 Movement in (receivable) / payable 
under defined benefit schemes 

Opening balance 
Charge / (reversal) for the year 
Contribution by the Bank - net 
Re-measurement loss / (gain) recognised in OCI 

during the year 
Benefits paid by the Bank 
Closing balance r 34.8 Charge for defined benefit plans 

34.8.1 Cost recognised in profit and loss 

r I 

I 

r ' 

r 
r 
r 

Current service cost 
Past service cost 
Net interest on defined benefit asset/ liability 

34.8.2 Re-measurements recognised In OCI during the year 

Loss/ (gain) on obligation 
Demographic assumptions 
Financial assumptions 
Experience adjustment 

Return on plan assets over interest income 
Total re-measurements recognised in OCI 

34.8.2 

34.8.2 

34.8.2 

2018 2017 
-- (Per annum) --

12.75% 8.00% 
12.25% 7.50% 

EFU (61-66) table 

2018 2017 
(Rupees In '000) 

17,218 
(14,409) 

2,809 

13,766 
4,011 

1,050 
(1,274) 

(335) 
17,218 

8,708 
899 

6,344 
(1,274) 

(268) 
14,409 

5,058 
4,162 

(6,344) 

(67) 

2,809 

4,011 

151 
4,162 

(335) 

13,766 
(8,708) 
5,058 

3,805 
1,353 
7,490 

295 

823 
13,766 

5,915 
551 

2,382 

(140) 
8,708 

(2,110) 
8,587 
(2,382) 

963 

5,058 

1,353 
7,490 

(256) · 
8,587 

823 

268 140 

======='6=7=) ====9=63== 



2018 2017 

34.9 Components of plan assets 

Cash and cash equivalents - net 

34.10 Sensitivity analysis 

(Rupees in '000) 

14,409 

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and 
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit 
schemes. The increase/ (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each 

assumption is summarised below: 

8,708 

Gratuity fund 

1 % increase in discount rate 
1 % decrease in discount rate 
1 % increase in expected rate of salary increase 
1 % decrease in expected rate of salary increase 

34.11 Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year 

34.12 Expected charge / (reversal) for the next financial year 

34.13 Maturity profile 

The weighted average duration of the obligation (in years) 

34.14 Funding Policy 

(701) 

764 
761 

(711) 

5,558 

5,000 

4.9 

The Bank endeavors to ensure that liabilities under the employee benefit scheme is covered by the Fund on any 
valuation date having regards to the various actuarial assumptions such as projected future salary increase, expected 
future contributions to the fund, projected increase in liability associated with future service and the projected investment 

income of the Fund. 

34.15 The significant risk associated with the staff retirement benefit schemes includes 

Asset Volatility 
The fund is exposed to asset volatility risk to the extent of change in bond yields. 

Changes in Bond Yields 
The valuation of the Gratuity Liability is discounted with reference to the government bond yields. So, any increase in 

Bond yields w il l lower the Retirement Benefits Liability and vice versa, but, it w ill also lower the Asset values. 

Inflation Risk 
The salary inflation (especially the final salary risk) is the major risk that the Gratuity and compensated absences liability 
carries. In a general economic sense and in a longer view, there is a case that if bond yields increase, the ensuing change 
in salary inflation generally offsets the gains from the decrease in discounted gratuity. But viewed with the fact that, for 
gratuity, asset values will also decrease; the salary inflation does, as an overall effect, increases the net liability of the 

Bank. 

Life Expectancy / Withdrawal Rate 
The Gratuity is paid off at the maximum of age 60. The Life expectancy is in almost minimal range and is quite 
predictable in the ages when the employee is in the accredited employment of the Bank for the purpose of the Gratuity. 

Thus, the risk of life expectancy is almost negligible. 

The withdrawal risk is dependent upon the: benefit structure; age and retention profile of the staff; the valuation 
methodology; and long-term valuation assumptions. In this case, it is not a significant downside risk as higher 
withdrawal, although troublesome for the Bank, will give rise to a release in the liability as retirement benefits for 

unvested due to earlier w ithdrawal. 

35 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 

The Branches operates as approved provident fund scheme for all of its permanent employees to which both Branches 
and employees contribute at the rate of 10% of basic salary in equal monthly contribution. During the year the Branches 
had contributed an amount of Rs. 3.094 million (December 31, 2017: Rs. 2. 768 million) to recognized provident fund. 



36 COMPENSATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES 

Managenal remuneration & bonus 
Charge for defined benefit plan 
Contnbution to defined contribut ion plan 
Rent and house maintenance 
Ut1lit1es 
Medical 
Conveyance 

Number of persons 

Chief Executive 
2018 2017 

(Rupees In '000) 

38,976 34,786 

2,466 

41 442 34 78!.;! 

Executives 
2018 2017 

(Rupees In '000) 

649,142 745,893 
475 2,382 
207 3,010 

117,993 10,905 
207 2,476 
207 2,476 

1,524 1,465 
769.755 7!!!.U!Q7 

55 86 

36.1 The chief executive and certain executives are also provided with drivers, security arrangements, accommodation. fees o f children and payment of travel bills 
in accordance w ith their terms of employment. 

37 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The fair value of quoted securities other than t hose classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted market price. Quoted securities classified as held to 
maturity are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted equity securit ies, other than investments in associates and subsidiaries, 1s determined on the basis of 
the break-up value of these investments as per their latest available audited f inancial statements. 

The fa ir value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets, other flab1 fl t1es. f ixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated w ith 
suff1c1ent reliability due to the absence of a current and active market for these assets and liab1li1ies and reliable data regarding market rates for similar 

instruments. 

In the opinion of the management, the fa ir value of the remaining f inancial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their carrying values since 
these are either short-term in nature or. in the case of customer loans and deposits, are frequently repriced. 

37.1 Fair value of f inancial usets 

The Branches measures fa ir values using the following fa ir value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements: 

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included w ithin Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly 

(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (1.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs). 

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value 

measurement is categorised: 

On balance sheet financial Instruments 

Financial assets · measured at fair value 
Investments 

Federal Government Securities 

Off-balance sheet financial Instruments· measured at fair value 
Forward purchase and sale of foreign exchange contracts 

On balance sheet financial Instruments 

Flnanclal assets · measured at fair value 
Investments 

Federal Government Securit ies 

Off-balance sheet financial Instruments · measured at fair value 

Forward purchase of foreign exchange 

2018 

Carrying / Fair value 

Notional value Level 1 Leval 2 level 3 Touil 
..................•.............. (Rupees In '0001 · ··········-·-··- ······ ······ 

175,857,020 175,857,020 175,857,020 

832.150,455 15,115,616 15,115,616 

2017 

Carrying/ Fair value 

Notional value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

(Rupees in '000) 

235,089,040 235,089,040 235,089,040 

1,067,906,193 7,768,514 7,768,514 

37.2 Valuation techniques used In determination of fair valuation of financial Instruments within level 2 and level 3: 

(a) Financial Instruments In level 2 

Financial instruments included in level 2 comprise of Market Treasury Bills, Pakistan Investment Bonds and forward foreign exchange contracts. 

Item Valuation technique and Input used 

Pakistan Investment Bonds/ Market Treasury Bills Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using t he 

PKRV rates. 

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts The valuation has been determined by interpolating the FX revaluation rates 
announced bv State Bank of Pakistan. 

(b) Financial Instruments In level 3 

Currently, no f inancial instruments are classified in level 3. 



... 

38 SEGMENT INFORMATION 

38.1 Segment Detalla with respect to Business Activities 
2018 

Corporate Treasury 
Branch 

Others Total 
finance Banldn 

Profit and Losa (Rupees In '0001 

Net mark-up/ return/ profit 1.002,787 17,188,719 (9,482,212) 8,729,294 
Inter segment revenue· net 
Non mark-up/ return/ Interest Income 787,291 1,488,379 12 2,255,882 

Total Income 1,790,078 17,188,719 (7,993,833) 12 10,984,978 

Segment direct expenses 137,838 2,258,473 25,733 3,893 2,425,737 

Inter segment expense allocation 
Total expenses 137,838 2,268,473 25,733 3,893 2,425,737 

Provisions (148,983) (148,963) 
Profit before. tax 1.sos,4n 14,930,246 le.01s,&66J (3,8811 8.412.278 

Balance Sheet 

Cash & Bank balances 27,429,585 4,244,574 31,674,169 
Investments 175,857,020 176,867,020 
Net Inter segment lending 
Landings to linanclal Institutions 207,924,067 207,924,087 

Advances· performing 22,713.422 22,713,422 
- non-performing 

Others 3,345,503 16,384,860 627,618 737,016 21,094,898 

Total Assets 28,058,925 427,595,632 4,872,092 737,015 469,283,684 

Borrowings 355,488,484 356,488,484 
Deposits & other accounts 88,540,142 88,540,142 
Net Inter segment borrowing 
Others 5,616,277 1,289,244 1,392,847 2,801,487 10,978,866 
Total liabilities 5,515,277 368,765,708 87,932,989 2,801,487 433,005,481 
Equity 20,643,848 70,839,824 (83,060,897) (2,064,472) 28,258,103 
Total Equity and llabllltles 26,068,926 427,596,632 4,872,092 737,016 469,283,584 

Contingencies and Commitments 230,082,131 1,039,624,200 1,289,588,331 

2017 (Restated) 
Corporate Treasury 

Branch 
Others Total 

finance Bankin 
Profit and Loas (Rupees In '000) 

Net mark-up/return/profit 418,549 14,004,221 (8,071,121) 6,351,649 
Inter segment revenue - net 
Non mark-up/ return/ Interest Income 693,469 (122,6011 621 671,379 
Total Income 1,112,008 14,004,221 (8,193,722) 521 6,923,028 

Segment direct expenses 36,010 1,464,630 6,116 2,935 1,608,691 
Inter segment expense allocation 
Total expenses 35,010 1,464,630 6,116 2,935 1,608,691 
Provisions (82,4651 (82,465) 
Profit before tax 994,533 12,539,591 (8, 199,8381 (2,414) 5,331,872 

Balance Sheet 

Cash & Bank balances 15,476,860 1,570,623 17,047,483 

Investments 235,089,040 236,089,040 
Net Inter segment lending 
Lendings to financial institutions 118,285,067 118,285,067 
Advances. performing 8,164,082 8,164,082 

- non-performing 
Others 928,978 11,664,013 17,776 762,426 13,263.191 
Total Assets 9,093,060 380,404,980 1,688,398 762,426 391,848,863 

Borrowings 303,724,827 303,724,827 
Deposits & other accounts 67,698,198 67,698,198 
Net Inter segment borrowing 
Others 1,967,868 3,785,499 4,628,387 3,204,031 13,685,775 
Total llabllltles 1,967,858 307,610,326 62,326,685 3,204,031 375,008,800 
Equity 7,126,202 72,894,664 (60,738, 187) (2,441,606) 16,840,063 
Total Equity and llablllth,a 9,093,060 380,404,980 1,588,398 762,425 391,848,663 

Contlngenclea and Commitments 223,489,902 1,076,383,646 1,298,873,448 

~ 



39 REIATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Tho Brunches has related party transactions with its Hoed Office, other ICBC Branches, employoo boneflt plans and its Olroctora and Koy 11111negement personnel. 

The Branches enters Into transactions with related parties In the ordinary course of business end on substantially the same terms as for comparable transactions with 
person of similar standing. Contributions to end ewuols In respect ot statt retirement bonofits and other benefit plans 010 made In accordance with the actuarial 
valuations/ terms of the contribution plan. Remuneration to the executives/ otflcers ls determlned In accordance with the terms of their appointment. 

Details ot the trensectlons with related partlos dunno the year and balances with them os at year end are es follows: 

Balances with otho, bonb 

In deposit accounts 

l.mdln91 to flnanclal lns1ltuttons 

Openin9 belanco 
Addition during the year 
Repaid during tho year 
Transfer In/ (out) - net 
Oosing balance 

Otho, Assets 

Forward exchange contract 

Borrow1n91 

Opening balance 
Borrowings during the year 
Settled during lhe year 
Transfer In I (out)· nel 
Oosing balance 

Depoalts and othar accounts 

Opening balance 
Received during the year 
Wilhdrawn during the year 
Transfer in/ (out)· not 
Closing balance 

Otho, Uabllltlos 

rntores1 / mark-up paynblo 
Payable to staff retirement fund 
Forward oxchengo contracts 
Payable to head office 

Contlngonclas and Commitments 

Lener of guarantee 
FOIWllrd exchange contract sale 
Forward exchange contract purchase 

Income 

Mark-up/ 1oturn / Interest earned 

Foe ond commission Income 

Marko(Jp / return/ Interest paid 

Compensation oxpcnso 

40 TRUST ACTIVITIES 

Koymanag&-1 
ment 

peraonnol 

3.&08 
294,787 
296,960 

694.225 

63 

Koymanag&-1 
ment 

poraonnel 

---

61 

487,960 

2018 

OverMU 
Hoed office bfancflos / 

esaodatos 

789,728 3.225.SSS 
789,728 3.225,!!86 

63,238.924 
(53,238.924) 

298.921.&04 
71,238,165 3,498,386.878 
(71,238,165) (3,441,800,918) 

365~.484 

1,038,785 

85,893,762 
44,887,829 
44,032,903 

2018 

OverleOI 
Hoad office branchos 

27,809 

140,134 

8,388 8,394,.212 

Tha Brenchos ere not engaged In any significant trust activities. 

Other Koy menoge· 
rolatlld ment 
parties personnel 

(Rupoos In 'COO) 

480,816 

7,666 
276,484 
(279,642) 

3608 

14 
2,809 

Other Key manogo-1 
related mont 
pa,tlOI persoMel 

IRu ocs In '0001 p 

26 

658,657 

2017 

Overseas 
Hoed office branches / 

aasociatea 

457,268 1,004.311 
467 268 1004311 

130.089, 664 
(130,089,654) 

4,016,288 

88,802,726 79,390,262 
262,303,302 4,631,766,781 
(341,206,027) (4,312,236,639) 

298921 604 

3,728,282 
1,636,020 

67,654,067 
222,991,942 
223,429,767 

2017 

Head office I 

4,924 

616,311 

Overseas 
blanches 

21,436 

79,012 

3,961,774 

Other rela1ed 
pa!1ies 

6,058 

Other related 
parties 

6,392 



41 CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS 

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR): 
Paid-up capital (net of losses} 

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR): 
Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1} Capital 
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1} Capital 

Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 

Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs}: 

Credit Risk 

Market Risk 

Operational Risk 

Total 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 

2018 2017 
(Rupees in '000) 

20,829.285 

26,255,~13 I I 
26,255,313 

229,428 
26,484,741 

101,020,285 
26,382,340 
13,363,679 

140,766,304 

18.65% 
18.65% 
18.81% 

9.506.699 

16,840,~63 I 
16,840,063 

82,465 

16,922,528 

79,586.180 

2,408.431 

9,099,538 

91 ,094.149 

18.49% 
18.49% 

18.58% 

As at December 31, 2018 the SBP requires to maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk - weighted assets 
at or above the required minimum level of 10.00% and maintain Common Equity Tier 1 ( CET 1) ratio and Tier 1 ratio 

of 6.0% and 7.5% respectively. 

With effect from December 31, 2018 an additional Capital Conversation Buffer of 1.90% has to be maintained over 

and above the minimum required level. 

For Capital adequacy calculation, Branches have adopted Simple approach for Credit & Market Risk related exposures 

and Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk. 

Leverage Ratio (LR): 
Eligible Tier-1 Capital 

Total Exposures 

Leverage Ratio (percentage) 

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR): 
Total High Quality Liquid Assets 

Total Net Cash Outflow 

Liquidity Coverage Ratio 

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR): 
Total Available Stable Funding 
Total Required Stable Funding 

Net Stable Funding Ratio 

2018 2017 
(Rupees in '000) 

26,255,313 
690,299,295 

3.80% 

361,385,332 
176,610,002 

205% 

109,226,928 
67,827,261 

161% 

16,840,063 

275.169, 161 

6.12% 

315,249,665 

200,540,212 

157.2% 

58,243,539 

45,906,734 

126.87% 

41.1 The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS as per SBP 
instructions issued from time to time are placed on the website. The link to the full disclosure is available at 

http://karachi.icbc.com.cn/lCBC/%E6 %B5% B7% E5%A4%96%E5%88%86% E8%A1 %8C/% E5%8D%Al %E6%8B 

%89%E5%A5%87% E7%BD%91 %E7%AB%99/en/CustomerServicel/Downloads/ 

42 RISK MANAGEMENT 

42.1 RISK MANAGEMENT 

The primary objective of the Risk Management System is to safeguard the Branches' capital, their financial resources 
and profitability from various risks. The Branches risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze all 
risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, to measure and monitor the same through reliable Management 

Information System. 

<f-,\iv" 
~ 



This section presents information about the Branches exposure to, and its management and control of, risks, in 
particular the primary risks associated w ith its use of financial instruments. Most of the functions specified below 
have been performed at head office level. 

Credit risk 

Credit Risk Management processes encompass identification, assessment, measurement, monitoring and control 
of the credit exposures. In the Branches experience. a key to effective credit risk management is a well thought 
out business strategy. The Branches focus over the coming years will be to further enhance risk models. 

processes and systems infrastructure, in line with its ambition to bring maximum sophistication to the risk 
management function. 

The Branches, as per State Bank of Pakistan Guidelines, calculated its Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) based on 
the SBP Guidelines on Basel Ill. Processes have been set for fine-tuning the systems & procedures, information 
technology capabilities and risk governance structure to meet the requirements of the advanced approaches as 
well. 

The Head Office has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to the credit committee which is 
responsible for the oversight of the Branches· credit risk in respect of: 

- Formulating credit policies 

- Establishing the authorization structure 

- Review ing and assessing credit risk 

- Limiting concentration of exposure to counterparties 

- Developing and maintaining the Branches' risk grading 
- Reviewing compliance of business units 
- Providing advice. guidance and specialist skills to promote best practice in the management of credit risk. 

The Branches have built-up and maintained a sound loan portfolio in terms of well-defined Credit Policy. Its credit 
evaluation system comprises of well-designed credit appraisal, sanctioning and review procedures for the purpose 

of emphasizing prudence in lending activities and ensuring the high quality of asset portfolio. As part of prudent 
practices, the management conducts pre-fact validation of major cases from integrated risk point of view. The 

Branches manage its portfolio of loan assets with a view to limit concentrations in terms of risk quality, 

geography, industry, maturity and large exposure. 

Credit Risk - General Disclosures Basel II Specific 

The Branches are using The Standardized Approach (TSA) of SBP Basel II accord for the purpose of estimating 
Credit Risk Weighted Assets. Under TSA, banks are allowed to take into consideration external rating(s) of 

counter-party(s) for the purpose of calculating Risk Weighted Assets. 

Disclosures for portfolio subject t o the Standardized Approach & Supervisory risk weights in 
the IRB Approach-Basel II specific 

External 

SBP Basel II guidelines require banks to use ratings assigned by specified External Credit Assessment Agencies 
(ECAls) namely PACRA, JCR-VIS, Moodys, Fitch and Standard & Poors. 

The branches use external ratings for the purposes of computing the risk w eights as per the Basel II framework. 
For. exposures w ith a contractual maturity of less than or equal to one year. short-term rating given by approved 
Rating Agencies is used, whereas for long-term exposure w ith maturity of greater than one year. long-term rating 
is used. 

Where there are two ratings available, the lower rating is considered and where there are three or more ratings 

the second - lowest rating is considered. 



Disclosures with respect to Credit Risk M itigation for Standardized and IRB approaches-Basel 
II specific 

Credit risk mitigation policy 

The Branches define collateral as the assets or rights provided to the Branches by the borrower or a third party in 
order to secure a credit facility. The Branches would have the rights of secured creditor in respect of the assets or 
rights offered as security for the obligations of the borrower / obligor. 

Collateral valuation and management 

As stipulated in the SBP Basel II guidelines, the Branches have a policy to use the comprehensive approach for 
collateral valuation. Under this approach, the Branches reduces its credit exposure to a counterparty when calculating 
its capital requirements to the extent of risk mitigation provided by the eligible financial collateral as specified in the 

Basel II guidelines. In line w ith Basel II guidelines, the Branches make adjustments in eligible collaterals received for 
possible future fluctuations in the value of the collateral. These adjustments. also referred to as 'haircuts'. are made to 
produce volatil ity-adjusted amounts for collateral. These are reduced from the exposure to compute the capital charge 

based on the applicable risk weights. At December 31, 2018, there are no non performing advances. 

Types of collateral taken by the Branches 

The Branches determine the appropriate collateral for each facility based on the type of product and counterparty. 
In case of corporate and small and medium enterprises financing, fixed assets are generally taken as security for 
long tenor loans and current assets for working capital finance usually backed by mortgage or hypothecation. For 
project f inance, security of the assets of the borrower and assignment of the underlying project contracts is 

generally obtained. Additional security such as pledge of shares. cash collateral, TDRs. SSC/DSCs. charge on 
receivables may also be taken. Moreover, in order to cover the entire exposure Personal Guarantees of Directors / 

Borrowers are also obtained by the Branches. 

The decision on the type and quantum of collateral for each transaction is taken by the credit approving authority 
as per the approved credit approval authorization policy. Collaterals on faci lities are in line with the policy. 

Types of eligible financial collateral 

For credit risk mitigation purposes, the Branches consider all types of financial collaterals that are eligible under 

SBP Basel II instructions. This includes Cash/ TDRs, Gold, securities issued by Government of Pakistan such as 

T-Bills and PIBs. National Savings Certificates, certain debt securities rated by a recognized credit rating agencies, 

mutual fund units w here daily Net Asset Value (NAV) is available in public domain and guarantees from certain 

specif ied entities. In general, for Capital calculation purposes, the Branches only recognize eligible collaterals as 

mentioned in the SBP Basel II instructions. 

Credit concentration risk 

Credit concentration risk arises mainly due to concentration of exposures under various categories viz. industry, 

geography, and single/group borrower. Within credit portfolio, as a prudential measure aimed at better risk 
management and avoidance of concentration of risks, the SBP has prescribed regulatory limits on banks' 

maximum exposure to single borrower and group borrowers. 



Pamculars of Branches s1gnrf1cant on·balance shee1 and oll·balance sheet credrt 11sk rn va11ous sec101s are analysed as follows. 

42.1.1 L1ndina1 to fin•ncJ•l /n1t1tutlon1 

Credit risk by public / private nctor 

Publw:/ Government 
Pnvate 

42.1.2 /nr,nm,nt /n dfbt 1,wr1t1t1 

Credit risk by Industry 11c1or 

Cutdlt risk by public/ private ••ctor 

Public/ Government 
Pr,vate 

42.1.3~ 

Credit risk by lnduotry 11c1or 

Texti le 
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 
Sugar 
Automobile and transportation equipment 
Electromes and electrical appliances 
Power lelect11c11y). Gas, Water, Sanitary 
Wholesale and Retail Trade 
Services 
lnd1V1dua!s 
Others 

Credit risk by public / private 11c1or 

Pubhc/ Government 
Private 

42.1.4 Contina,acl,, •nd Commltm,ats 

Credit rlok by Industry 11c1or 

Mining and Quarrying 
Automobile and transportation equipment 

Electronics and electncal appliances 
Construc11on 
Power lelect11c1ty), Gas. Water, Sanitary 
Transport, Storage and Commumcat,on 
Financial 

Others 

Credit risk by public / private soc1or 

Pubhc/ Government 
Private 

42. 1.5 Concentration of Advancu 

Grau londlngs Non,porformlng londlng1 
2018 2017 2018 2017 

---------·-------(Ru-In '0001-· 

207,924,007 
207,124,0Cl7 

118.285.067 
118.285,067 

Provlolon hold 
2011 2017 

Oroaa Investment, Non-performing lnvntment.a ProvlMon held 
2018 2017 2011 2017 2011 2017 

-··--·-·-··· .. ·-·-·····--···----·-··· (Rupffl In 'OOOl --------·-··--···-··--·-···--

175,857,020 235,089,040 

175,157,020 235,089,040 

175.157.020 235.089.040 

Orou 1dvonc11 Non•performlng odvoncn Provlalon hold 
2011 2017 2011 2017 2018 2017 

··-···-···-·· ·····-···-··---·-·-··-·· (Rup- In 'OOOl - ·----·--··-·---·-··-
1,540,000 600,000 
1,400,402 

ne,210 
500,000 

1,509,1113 
8,478,0CIJ 
U44,145 

117,500 
34.~7 

748,500 
22,1142,850 

22,1142,850 
22,1142,150 

967,999 
1,181,41 3 
4,199,813 

34,151 
1,263,171 
8,246,547 

8,246,547 
8.246.547 

2011 2017 
(RupHs In '000) 

5,853,487 
58,lle,1151 

143,781,318 
18,921,718 

4.IN,4811 
41,069 

1,811,773 
229,780,311 

229,780,311 
229,780,311 

2,168,928 

9,318,426 
180,671.967 

17,561,666 
7,294.133 
6,474,782 

223,489.902 

223.489.902 
223.489.902 

The bank top 10 exposures on the baslS of total {funded and non·funded exposures) aggregated to Rs 18,891 m,U,on 12017: 5,474 m,lhon) are u following: 

Funded 
Non Funded 
Total Exposure 

The sanctioned limns against these top 10 exposures aggregated to Rs 21,674 m1ll1on t2017: Rs 9,298 m1lhonl. 

2018 2017 
(Ru- In '0001 

14,le1,le7 
4,229,644 

18,891,311 

4,012,582 
1.461,140 
5.473.722 



42.1.5 Adv1ncos • Provlnco/Roglon,wlu Dlsburaomonl & Utillution 

Province/Region 

Pun1ab 
S1ndh 
Islamabad 
Total 

Province/Region 

Punjab 
Sindh 
Islamabad 
Total 

42.2 M1rkol Risk 

2018 
Dltbursem1nt1 _______________ u_1_11_1,_,_11_on _ _____________ _ 

Punl•b Slndh 
KPK Including 

FATA 
Baluchlsun Islamabad 

AJK 
Including 

Gllglt· 
Bettlrt1n 

······-············-····················· .. ···-········-······· (RupeH In '0001 ··· - .. ···-·····-····-···········-··-·····--·····-······-·· 
11.388,713 11.320,040 78,573 
24.825.1198 908,510 23,518,418 400,000 

891.523 700,980 180,543 
37. 117.234 12.228.820 24.298.071 590,543 

2017 
0 1sbursemcnts Ut,hiat,on 

Punjab S,ndh KPK including 
B11luchtstan Islamabad 

AJK including 
FATA G1lg,1t·Balt1St.an 

(Rupees 1n ·0001 

7,338,706 6,762,463 576,243 
t6.320,904 651.418 15,669,486 

402,687 397,826 4,861 
24,062,297 7413881 16 245 729 397 826 4 861 

Market risk. 1s the nsk of loss imsmg from movement in market variables 1nclud1ng observable vanables such as interest rates, exchange rates and equity indices, and others which may be only 
ind11ectJy observable such as volat1lmes llnd couelatmns. The Branches· pohcy 1s that all market risk taking acuvny is undenaken w11hm approved markst 11sk limits. and that the Branches· 
s1andardS/ guiding p11nc,ples are upheld at all t,rnes. 

Market Risk Management 1s an independent con1rol function wrth clear segregation of duty and roportmg lme with the business-Imo Its main respons1b1hty 1s to ensure 1hat 1he r1sk-takmg units 
m1n1ge 1h• Branch 's marlc1111sk exposu,e within a robu1t rnarka1111k framework and Within the Branch's risk 1ppe111e. The Branch 's standard sys1ems 11e used 10 fu rn15h senior trading and 
Market Aisle staff wtth uslc exposures. AU trading ar:1rv1 t1es and any business proposal that commrt or may commn the Branch llegally or moraUyt to delrvor risk sensrtrve products 1equ110 approval 
by independent authorized risk professionals or commmees. prior to comrrwtmont 

42.2.1 B1l1nco shoot spill by !roding ind booking books 

Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balances with other banks 

Landings to financial mst1tut1ons 

Investments 

Advances 

FtXed assets 

Intangible assets 

Oefe,red tax assets 

Other assets 

42.2.2 Foreign Exchengo Risk 

2018 2017 

B1nklng book Trodlng book Toll! Banking book Trading book Total 

···-··- ····-·· ·······-···········-··· ················ (RupHs In '0001 ·--·-·······-······--·-·-·········--·-··-

21,651,474 27,651,414 16,585,904 16,585,904 
4,015,685 4,015,685 1,461,579 1,461,579 

207,924,007 207,924,007 118,285,067 118,285.067 
175.857.020 175,857,020 235,089,040 235.089,040 
22,713,422 22,713,422 8,164,082 8,164.082 

590.331 580.331 581,047 581,047 
2,768 2,7U 
1.ve1 7.Hl 633 633 

20,493.118 20,493.118 12,681,511 12,681,511 
459,253,5114 459,253,5114 391 848 863 391 848 863 

Fore ign exchange 11slc arises tram the fluctuat1on in the value of ftnenc,al ,nsuuments consequent to the changes in foreign exchange rates. The Branches manege this risk by sening and 
momtonng dealer, currency and counttu-party hmns for on and off-balance sheet hn11nc1al ms1ruments. 

FX usk 1s mainly managed thmugh matched pos,11ons. Unmatched posit ions ere covered substantially through deuvat1ve instruments such as Forwards and Swaps. 

The currency risk 1s regulated and monitored against the regulatory/statutory limits enforced by the State Bank of Palr::istan. The foreign exchange e xposure hmlls in respective currencies a,e 
managed against the presc11bed hm1ts. 

The analysis below represents the concentration of the Branches· foreign cuuency ri sk for on and oft balance sheet f inancial instruments: 

The bank.sJDFl s should d iscuss the nature and descnpt1on ct their foreign exchange exposures during the year. 

2018 

Foreign foreign 
Otl·b•l1nce 

Net foreign 
Currency Cun1ncy 

shoot Items 
currency 

A1Hls U1bllhl11 1xpo1ur1 

-····---····-··-······· (RupHs In '0001 ···- ....................... 

Pakistan Hupee 

United States Dollar 

Great Bntain Pound Steiling 

Eu,o 

Japanese Yen 
Chmese Yuan 

HKD 

Impact of 1 % change m fore.gn exchange rates on 

· Prof,1 and loss account 

• 1 % Upward change ,n mteres1 rates 

· l % Downward change m interest rates 

427,290,940 
31,134.378 

21,091 
81,542 

49 
753,537 

1,429 
459,263,5114 

41,118,120 300,015.342 25. 169.412 
391,285,004 (359,949.9221 (201.3081 

21,591 
81,542 

49 
803,731 (85,420) 215,225 

1.429 
433,005,481 2e,258, 103 

2017 

Fore ign Foreign 
Off.balance 

Net fo reign 

Curronc:y Currency 
sheet items 

currency 

Assets L1ab1ht1os exposure 

!Rupees ,n '0001 

379,889.678 65,420,669 297,150,610 17,318,299 
11,375,316 298,833.148 1287.293.862) 11 63,970) 

20,925 4,474.142 14,472,732) 19,515 
12,019 127,882) 39,901 

38 38 
549.857 6.280,841 15.356.113) 1374.8711 

1,130 121 ) 1.1 51 
391 848 863 375 008 800 16 840 063 

2011 2011 
B1nklng book Trodlng book Banking book Trad ing book 

-·- ·--··- -·--- (RupH1 In '000) ·-·--··------·· ·· 

2,999 
(2,VHI 

5.388 
15,388) 



42.2.3 Yield I Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBBJ-Basel II Specific 

The interest rate risk arises from the fluctuation in the value of financial instruments consequent to changes in market interest rates. The branches are exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or 
gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments that mature or are re-priced in a given period. In order to ensure that this risk is managed within acceptable limits. branches' Asset 
and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) monitors various gap limits and re-pricing of the assets and liabilities on a regular basis. 

Impact of 1 % change in interest rates on 
- Profit and loss account 

- 1 % Upward change in interest rates 
- 1 % Downward change in interest rates 

- Other comprehensive income 
- 1 % Upward change in interest rates 
- 1 % Down change in interest rates 

42.2A Mismatch of Interest Rate Sensitive Assets and Uabllitles 

EffactlY8 
Yield/ 

lnterat 

ma 

Total 

Upto 1 

Month 

Ovar1 
tol 

Montha 

Ovar3 
to6 

Month• 

2018 
Exposed to Yield/ lnterfft risk 

over e Ovar 1 OV• 2 
Month• to 1 to 2 to I 

Vear Yun YNn 

2018 2017 
Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book 

------(Rupee. In '000)------

(1.089,963) 

1.089.963 

(19.477) 

19.529 

Ovar3 
to5 

Years 

Ov•5 
to 10 
y..,. 

(15,964) 

15,964 

1228,3991 
229.514 

Non-fntenst 
Above bnrfng flnanclal 

1ov ... Instruments 

On-balance •heet flnandal Instruments 

~ 

----------------------------(RupMaln '000)----------------------------

Cash end blllances with treasury banks 
Balances with other bllnks 
Lending to financial institutions 
Investments 
Advances 
Other assets 

Li.llli1iti§J 
Bills payable 
Borrowings 
Deposits end other accounts 
Other liabilities 

On-balance ahNt gap 

Off-balance sheet tlnandal Instruments 

0%-1.35% 
0%-1.8"' 

10.05% • 10."°"' 
6.89% • 1.7491% 

5%-12.21% 

2.93% • 4.1% 
0.02% • 10.85% 

Documentary credits end short·term trade-related transactions 

Commitments in respect of: 
- forward foreign exchange contracts 
Off.balance sheet gap 

Total Yleld/lnt.-t Ria Sensitivity Gap 

e«.imulative Yleld/lnterffl Risk Senlltlvlty Gap 

27.&58.474 
4.015.185 

207,124,G67 
176.157.0ZO 
22.713.,422 
20A10.719 

1.292.129 
155.418.464 

86.540. 142 
8144.408 

431.483.143 
27.116.244 

832.150.455 
832.150.455 

822.D3 . -
4,015,,685 . . 

207,124,067 . . 
174.152.476 . . 

8.49Z.553 12,602.712 3,584,148 . - -
12,602.712 3,584,148 

- . -
154.692.157 44,019.222 85.955.518 
23,388.809 1.905,185 1.935.377 . - . 

178.080.966 52.924.407 87.l90.193 
216,126.647 (40,!21S5l (84.so6.7451 

24.381,977 231,812.717 224.641.881 
24.381,077 nuaz.m 224.641.881 

240«!!!?,724 191.!81,042 140,!!§, 116 

Z~HZZZf giaz• m.zmuz 

. - . . . . 26.735,641 
- - . . . 
- . . . . . 

1.004.545 . . . 
208 517 4&5 9.075 - 23.744 . 
. - . . . 20410.719 

1,004,763 517 4&5 9.075 23.744 47.148.l60 

. . . 1,292.129 
70,119,569 . . . 

1,670,977 2.667.573 3,324,081 6.648.162 3.324.117 3,324.117 11.351.744 . . . 1144.408 
1.324.081 6.648.162 l,!24,117 20.718,281 

p1.485.791) 1u2u111 (&.639.0811 (3,!24. 1171 Juop.3111 26.351.079 

151.444.780 
151.444.780 

27911151r!!Z (2.667.9!!1 (l,!2!,8111 (6.839.0811 (l,!24,1171 (U00.1731 28,!!!,079 

IIZ lRIIII MS§51l3 Hi izz iaz m.mna m.zmim UZIOUZQ ---



On-balance aheet flnandal lnatrumenta 

~ 
Cssh end balances with treasury banks 
Balances with other banks 
lending to financial instiMions 
lnvastmonts 
Advances 
Other assets 

LiilbiJititi 
Bills peyable 
Borrowings 
Deposits and other accounts 
Other liabilities 

On-balance sheet gap 

Off-balance sheet financial Instruments 
Commitments in respect of: 
- fOIW8rd foreign exchange contracts 
Off-balance sheet gap 

Total Ylald/lnternt Rllk Sensitivity Gap 

Cumulatlva Ylaldllntwnt Ria Senlltlvl1y Gap 

42.3 Operational Rlslc 

Effective 
Yield/ 

Interest 
rate 

0.06% · 0.24% 
0%• 1.4% 

5. 75% • 5.909E, 

5.90% · 11.5% 
6.3%-8.09% 

0.5591,-4.8% 
0.2%-6.4% 

Total 

Upto 1 
Month 

Over1 
to3 

Months 

2017 

Over3 
to 6 

Months 

Exposed to Yield/ Interest risk 
Over 6 Over 1 Over 2 

Months to 1 to 2 to 3 
Year Years Years 

Over3 
to 5 

Years 

Overs 
to 10 
Years 

Above 
10 Years 

Non-interest 
bearing financial 

instruments 

------------------------- (Rupees in '000)-------------------------

15,585,904 530,167 15,055,737 
1,461,579 1,082,991 352.269 13,319 13,000 

1 18,285,067 85,850,054 32,435,013 -
235,089,040 144,073,040 80,176,691 9,768.008 1,071,301 

8,164,082 3,011,251 2,928,606 1,722,413 159,080 1,924 312,286 4,335 24,187 
12 681 511 - - - 12 681 511 

391,267.183 234,547,503 115,892,579 11,503,740 172,080 1,073,225 312,286 4,335 24,187 27,737.248 

4,573,858 - 4,573,858 
303, 724,827 162,976,793 140,748.034 -

57,698,198 27,775.429 14,236,000 5,925,000 287,814 9,473,955 
9,011 917 - - 9.011 917 

375,008,800 190 762 222 154984,034 5,925,000 23.059,730 
16 2§8 383 43 795 28] !39091 455) 5 578 740 IJ15 7:34) l 073 225 3l2 286 4335 24187 46U5JB 

1 067,906, 193 303218068 401.166.096 18 521.170 345,000,859 
1,067 906 193 303,218068 401166096 18,621 170 345000859 

347013 349 362074 641 24,099 910 344.885, 125 1,073.225 312.286 4,335 24187 4 677 518 

341013 349 209087 990 Z33 JBZ 9!Xl l 07BOZJQ25 l 079146 250 l 0794§853§ l 079~787] l 07946787] l 079 4870§8 l QS4 HiHZS 

The Branches' operational risk is related to possible losses which may be incurred as a result of failures occurring in the branches' day to day operations. such as breakdown in electronic and telecommunication. 
routines or other systems. Additional factors being insufficient levels of professional skills or human errors. In order to keep the Branches' operational risks to a minimum level. various suites of risk tools are used 
to manage operational risk using a common categorization of risk. 

Branches' approach to operational risk is not designed to eliminate risk, rather, to contain it within the acceptable levels. as determined by senior management, and to ensure that the Branches have used sufficient 
information to make informed decisions about additional controls. adjustments to controls, or other risk responses. 



42.3.1 Operational Risk-Disclosures Basel II Specific 

The Branches use Basic Indicator Approach to calculate capital charge for operat ional risk as per Basel II regulatory framework. 

This approach is considered to be mos1 suitable in view of the business model of the Branches. 

42.4 Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk 1hat 1he Branches will be unable to meet their net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be caused by market des1ruction of credit downgrades. which may cause certain sources of funding to become 
unavailable. To guard against this risk the Branches' assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash, cash equivalen1s and readily marketable securities. The ma1urity profile is monitored 10 
ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. 

The table below summarizes the maturity profi le of the branches assets and liabilities. The contractual maturities of assets and liabilities at the year end have been determ ined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance 
sheet date to the contractual maturity date and do not take account of the effective maturities as indicated by the branches deposit retention history and the availability of liquid funds. Assets and liabilities not having a 
contractual maturity are assumed to mature on the expec1ed dale on which 1he assets /liabilities will be realized/ se1tled. 

Moreover. the Branches' are fully compliant with Basel Ill LCR and NSFR. w hich ensure sufficient stock of High Ouali1y Liquidity Assets in relation 10 its liability profile. 

42.4.1 M aturities of Assets and Liabilities - based on contractual maturity of the assets and liabilities of the Branches 

-Cash and balances wrth t reasury banks 

Balances with other banks 

l ending to fmancial institut,ons 

Investments 
Advances 

Fixed assets 

Intangible assets 
Oefetred tax assets 

Other assets 

Liabilities 

ems payable 
80<rowings 

Deposits and other accounts 

Other liabilR,es 

Neta.-

Shafe caprtaV Head off,ce caprtal account 

Reserves 

Unappropnated/ Unremrtted profrt 

SurpJus/lOefteitJ on revaluat,on of assets 

Total 

27,1151,474 

4,015.1185 
207,824.087 
175,857,020 

22,713,422 

590,331 
2,718 
7,H1 

20,493.1111 
459,263,5114 

1.292.129 
355,41111,4&4 

1111.540.142 
1,11111.7211 

433.005,4111 

211,251,103 

20.129.2115 

5,4111.341 
(67.530) 

26,251,103 

Upto 1 Day Ove, 1 to 7 dayo 

227,840 1.355.831 
133.856 103,137 

116,017.716 
174,852,475 

1,131.479 

121 

2116 1,697 
1,917,1135 

381,890 298.11111.1711 

43,071 251,4211 

111.515.122 
1,111.1197 7,131,1112 

4 ,151,031 

1.232.7118 73.0IIJ.4111 

(170.,78) 223,103,415 

Over 1 to 14 Over 14 days to 1 
days Month 

Over 1 to 2 
Montha 

2011 

Ove, 2to3 
Month• 

0vH3toll 
Month• 

---·-·-···- ------------------·--- (Ru-In '000) 

1,593,477 3.1142.234 
836,993 2.141.1199 

91 ,908.352 

1,148,319 1,1187,929 5 ,936,IIWI II.IWIS.111 3.A1.135 
211 

16 116 111 1112 

1.163 4.235 
92,11111 4,092.474 11,733,531 11,163.298 702,714 

H.377,S90 11,5118,517 12.1170,513 13,529.133 4,5114,057 

301,497 1189.135 

12.497,671 I0.1178,714 32.910,270 11 ,108.952 115.955.5111 
11,127,879 30 ,675.352 5,083,000 2.110. 000 11611.117 

1.980.HS 1.925.905 1711.116 711.148 1176.1199 

33.S07.112 113.1119.1611 13,995. 691 87,288.332 

112,7119,771 1102.300,5119) (28,191,923) (112,704,275) 

On<llto9 
Month, 

1.004.545 
3411.213 

19 
117 

355 
1.351.329 

11,000 

14 

1,345,315 

Over 9 month• 
to 1 yNr 

351 
197 

2 1,123 

21 ,1171 

70.111.5119 
253,215 

71,072,714 

(71,051,113) 

Over 1 to2 
v••rs 

116,142 

12,622 

717 

199,551 

199,551 

0vH2to 3 
years 

4115 
21.113 

627 

22.205 

22,205 

Ove, 3to 5 
YNrw 

9,075 

16.nO 
522 

26.317 

26.317 

Ove r 5 YNn 

20 ,829,285 

1 .014,180 

539.'80 

22 .3113,745 

22.383.745 



An .. • 
Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balances with other banks 

Lending to fmanc,al institutions 
Investments 

Advances 
Fixed assets 
Intangible assets 
Deferred tax assets 
Other assets 

Llabllltiff 

Bills payable 
Borrowings 
Deposits and other accounts 
Deferred tax habilmes 
Other r.ab,hties 

Nat H Mts 

Share cap1taV Head otftee capital account 
Re5erves 
Unappropriated/ Unremmed profit 

SurpluS/IOef1Cit) on revaluation of assets 

Total 

15.585.904 
1.461.579 

118,285.067 
235.089,040 

8. 164.082 
581,047 

633 
12.681,511 

391,848.863 

4,573,858 
303,724,627 

57.698. 198 

9,011.917 
375,008.800 

16 640 063 

9,506,699 

7,365.414 
02.0501 

16 840 063 

Upto 1 Day Over 1 to 7 days 
Over 7 to 14 Over 14 days to 1 

days Month 
Over l to 2 

Months 

2017 

Over 2 to 3 
Months 

Over3 to 6 
Months 

Over 610 9 
Months 

Over 9 months Over 1 to 2 
to 1 year years 

Ovor2 to3 
years 

---------------------------- IRupeos m '000)------- - - -------------------

202.640 1.418.481 1,4 18.481 3,039,603 
48.719 341.035 341,035 730,790 

85,850.054 17,817,255 14,617,758 
57,927,833 86,145,206 77,318.105 2,858,585 9,768,010 1,071,301 

104,047 1,749,033 1,158,171 2,760,306 168,300 1,722,413 159,080 1,924 312,286 
7 2 1 49 60 400 48 4,061 20. 190 

633 
311.022 1,260,478 2,014.790 4,178.181 2,601.487 470,426 477.028 1,368,099 

251,359 145.952.472 4,769,027 93,088,567 102.073.668 20.246,179 11,960.909 477,428 1,527.227 1.077,919 332.476 

152.462 914.772 1,067,234 2,439,390 
4,803.323 51,400,037 106,773,432 43,249,647 97.498,388 

948.004 9,164,031 7,336,031 19,801.318 4,600,000 9,636.000 5,925.000 287.814 

1,321,233 934,582 1.175,547 333,256 1,616.599 256,822 476.285 1,362,573 
5,903,789 11,400.036 60,737,864 130.189.687 48,182.903 108,750.987 6.181,822 476.285 1,650.387 

15 652 430! 134 552 436 (55 968 8571 07 101 120! 53 890 965 (88 504 8081 5 779 087 1 143 1123 160! 1 077 919 332 476 

Over 3 to 5 
Years 

4.335 
24,613 

28,948 

28 946 

Over 5 Years 

9.506.699 

24,187 
531,598 

10,062.484 

1,535.020 
1.535.020 
8 527 464 



42.4 .. 2 Matu rillu of •-t• and llablllllu • baMd on a~ maturitlM of tha NMta and llabHIIIM of tha O.anchM 

Aaaet, 
Cu h , na o.~r.coi w in 1, .. , 1.1y o.nls 
a, ... rcn •Kl h otre, a.nt, 
l ono 110 10 fr anc. 1,t1,1 11.1,011, 
lnv•)lm• nls 
Ao .. , rc•• 
f-i,,oQU)Ul) 

lnta ng Do u,a1s 
Oofomto to an11u 
Olf'e r t n•ts 

Uah lln1 .. 
8 ~) Pt'f'IU O 

Bouowmc, 
Oepo, l:t ana a lt 01 accot1n11 

Oe1111eo tu l• O 1101 

Ott111 l.1b,l111as 

Net UH11 

Sn110 cep ,111/ t hi•O Qfhca ctP,t • I • ccoun1 
Htu,i,1vus 
u n. pp,ocm,teO/ Umum,ueu p,0111 
Sura•1.1S/10ttl1c11) on 1e-,• tua1 i0n o1 usou 

A.t,,,. 
Cu n , r a t>t .. nc.a, w•ltl 11e.uu1 y Dent) 
0..•rces w in on 01 t>tril s 
Lano no 10 t ,n.rw1 rn1111u1.cn s 

lr -,111tr ot>1 1 

AD>-l•nco, 
h~ttd nsea 
ln11ng O o IUOh 

Oela lUtO , • • IUUI ) 

0 1r11 ,nen 

U&bilNIN 
8 .Js PilV•b o 
Bouow.:rigs 
Oapo1u ,no oltar , ccour,u 

Oelou.o tu I.ob 1 •> 
01t101 t.tJ,l,l<e) 

H1t uut.a 

Sr-11• toP.111/ H~a oll .ce c,g,te l 1ccovn1 

UnHKHODl .. ltta/ Ur.rnm 1u.a PIUl!l 
SurPl\il/tOotie II on ,o.,,1t,1•l10n ol usots 

Tot~ Up10 1 M onU. 
Owe,, lOJ 

llofttha 

- - ----····-· 
27,161,414 t.100.MI 2.1Jl,74l 

4,0tUn 2.111.117 N7.N7 
207,124,001 207.124,0l7 
171.1$7,020 174,IU.411 
22,IU.422 4.172.7211 ,2.-.112 

H O.JJI 
2,718 ,u UI 
7.181 7.Nl 

2DUJ 111 11n 7M 1J.&M•-
4U,.2U,IM ---- 211.J0),.271 

1,2t2,12t 1.2t2.12t 
w .41f.4'4 114,W ,117 44,011.222 
M.M0.142 24.U0,.'81 10..211.011 

1111721 I 017.SOl 162112 
W ,OOl.441 111.112.- M.JW,050 

Zl.2HlDil zm uiiaz1 ml~ZDI 

20,ut,.211 

, ... ,.,.. 
j57~l01 

Zl~H J0..1 

l o111 

Up10 1 Mon1t1 
Over 1103 

Mon1ras 

1~.585,004 1.425.140 1.901.1114 
1.• 61.~19 1.082,991 357,769 

118.285.()67 85.8!>0.0!>4 31.435.013 
735.089.040 144,073,040 80. 176.691 

8.164,082 3.011.151 1.928.606 
SB1.047 1 10 

633 
12 681 ~11 3 602 436 6 815 810 

391,1148.863 138.04-0.919 114.668 663 

4.573.B!>B • .573.BSB 
303.72017 161.916.79.J 

51.698.198 17.591.131 

9011 017 3 .... 1.!,08 
375.008.800 198.590.191 

16 B:10 06J 

9.506.699 

1 .36tl.4 14 
a , &.>01 

16 840063 

10154 62B 

1• 0.1.a.OJ• 
16.172.983 

1046 007 
158.967.024 

01 zgz J§JI 

43 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

l 011 

Ovw J to I o,w., • Mo"1ha 0w .. 1 , 02 o,.., 2 t o J 0-.•l lO ' o. .. , t.o 1a Att,o.,e 10 - tolY- YMn YNn Y-. y.,. Yaanr 

···--···---· 1"- lo ·- 1 ·········--····-- ----··--·-··-····-----·-·----
Ill.NI 2,1M.'20 20.&21.lM 
M.lll Jl.711 

1,004.MI 
J,1&4,1 .. 64.1,171 111.14l - 1,011 501 .... 507 .... 

21 ,,. U ,t.u Jl .111 11.721 - .HO 2•.140 
Ill aM 101 &27 U4 

1Dl 11' 21 .,, 

1.2 .. .&21 J,172,1N 1N,161 22.2N 21.uil 771,.2211 ,,.-.. 11 

........ ,. 10.11, ... 
J,.160.MO UM.Ml J .111. 121 .. ,,, ...... I.J,1,2.129 I..M2..I01 

111 - 14 
lt.NJ.4M 74,071,JM J.111.Ut 4,111.MI l,JU,721 I.JU.IOI 

11:1Hilill IZi~IYIIII llillil~I It JII HII llilllMII 1i1111lail iP a .111 

'201/ 

Ovit J lo 6 Ove r 6 Monua o .... , 110'1 0 -,e, '1 to J Ovo1 J to!> Ove1 S 10 10 
Mon1n, 101 v .. , Yoen v .. ,, v .. ,, Y N U 

Above 10 YNII 

tRupHs 1n 0001 -

824,718 1.928.593 9.!>06.699 
13.319 13.000 

9.768.008 1.011 30 1 
1,721.0 3 159 080 1.924 311.186 4.lJ~ 24 187 

60 448 4.061 20.190 1 •.613 ~ 1.~ 

633 
3!.8 118 184~1'1 

11.686.106 3.u.«i.248 I 017 019 JJ) 476 1B.94B 10061.-

8. 101 I U 1. 110 488 J , 119 881 

144 !.74 I BJB 8!>8 1 !i.)!,010 

8.147.139 3 1 lU.881 1.!>35.010 

1 138 96B !60J 09BI P 911 061! )J2 06 28 {MB 

Finance Supplementary (Seconcl Amendmenl) 8111. 2019 laid down before the National Assembly of Pakistan on January 23. 2019. amendeo the rate of Super tax 
noted 1n the earlier Finance Act. 2018 and orescrrbed a flat rate of 4% suoer tax for a11 account1nQ vears 1rom 2017 to 2020 

Since the above change 1n tax ra tes has been announced after the balance sheet date. 1t has been treated as non-ad1us11ng event under IAS 1 O 'Events after tne 
reoor1ino oe11od' and no hnanc1al 1moact has been taken in the current vear financial statements 

44 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

lhe f1nanc,al statements were au1hor12ed for issue on------ by the Chief Executive Officer and Hoed of Finance of the Branches 

45 GENERAL 

Compara11ve 1nformat1on has been re-class1hea. re-arranged or add1t1onally 1ncorpore1ed 1n these f1nanc1al sta1ements. wherever necessary to tec1iltete compa11son 

H ad of Finance 


